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Purpose Acquisitions Company Limited
| —

Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2016

The directors present their report together with the unaudited financial statements of Purpose
Acquisiitons Company Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended 30 June 2016.

The Company qualifies as a small company in accordance with sections 381 to 383 of the
Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”) and the Directors’ Report has therefore been prepared taking
into consideration the entitlement to small companies exemptions provided in sections 414B (as
incorporated to the Act by the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report Regulations 2013) of the
Act.

Principal activities and review of the business
The Company is dormant and did not trade during the year.

Directors and their interests
The directors who served the company during the pericd and up to the date of this report were

as follows:

S Cohen (appointed 27 June 2016)
E Erickson (resigned 8 July 2016)

K Kaye

M Prior (resigned 20 June 2016)

The directors have no declarable interest in the shares of the Company or of any other group
company.

On behalf of the Board

e 74

K Kaye
Director

Date: Z'/ ocToE ZOM;

Address of registered office:

Cardinal House, Abbeyfield Court
Abbeyfield Road

Nottingham

United Kingdom

NG7 282

Registered No: 06138327 2



Purpose Acquisitions Company Limited

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2016

2016 2015

Notes £ £
Impairment of investment - (2,983,851)
Operating loss _ (2,983,851)
Interest payable and similar charges - -
Loss on ordinary activities before tax _ (2,983,851)
Tax - -
Loss and total comprehensive income for the financial
year - (2,983,851)
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Purpose Acquisitions Company Limited

Balance sheet
as at 30 June 2016

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Profit and loss account

Shareholders’ funds

2016 2015
Notes £ £
2 2,983,851 2,983,851

(2,983,851) (2,983,851)

For the year ended 30 June 2016 the Company was entitled to exemption from audit under
section 480 of the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”) relating to dormant companies.

Directors’ statements:

e The members have not required the Company to obtain an audit of its accounts for the
year in question in accordance with section 476 of the Act; and

e The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of
the Act with respect to accounting records and the preparation of accounts.

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies

subject to the small companies’ regime.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors for issuance and signed on its

behalf by:

s/

K Kaye
Director

Date: 21 ocToB8dl 2450

The accompanying notes on pages 6 and 7 are an integral part of these financial statements.



Purpose Acquisitions Company Limited

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Called up Profit and
share capital loss account Total
£ £ £
At 1 July 2015 2,983,851 (2,983,851) -
At 30 June 2016 2,983,851 (2,983,851) -
Registered No: 06138327 5



Purpose Acquisitions Company Limited
.t _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ ]

Notes to the financial statements
as at 30 June 2016

Purpose Acquisitions Company Limited is a Company domiciled and incorporated in the United
Kingdom.

1. Accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with applicable UK accounting standards.

The company has elected to retain its accounting policies for reported assets, liabilities and
equity, at the date of transition to FRS102, until there is any change to those balances, or the
company undertakes any new transactions.

Group financial statements

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption to not prepare group financial statements
for its group under section 401 of the Companies Act 2006 on the grounds that:

» the Company and all of its subsidiaries are included in the group financial statements of
Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited drawn up to 30 June 2016; and

e that the group financial statements of Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited are drawn up in a
manner equivalent to group financial statements drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Seventh Directive.

Consequently, the financial statements only contain information about Purpose Acquisitions
Company Limited as an individual company and do not contain group financial information as
the parent of a group. These financial statements are available on request from the Company
Secretary at 74 E Swedesford Road, Malvern, PA 19355.

2. Called up share capital and reserves

2016 2015

Allotted, called up and fully paid No. £ No. £
Ordinary shares of £1 2,983,851 2,983,851 2,983,851 2,983,851
2,983,851 2,983,851

The Company's other reserves are as follows;

The profit and loss reserve represents cumulative profits or losses, net of dividends paid and
other adjustments.

3. Related party transactions

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited, the group financial
statements of which are publicly available.

Accordingly, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption in section 33 of FRS 102 from
disclosing transactions with 100% members or investees of the Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited
group.

Registered No: 06138327 6



Purpose Acquisitions Company Limited
.\ ]

Notes to the financial statements
as at 30 June 2016

4. Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The company's immediate parent undertaking is MEM Holding Limited, a company incorporated
in the United Kingdom.

The largest and smallest group for which financial statements are drawn up which incorporate
the results of the Company is that headed by Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the Bailiwick of Jersey. Copies of the group financial statements, which include
the results of the Company, are available from 74 E Swedesford Road, Malvern, PA 19355.

The Company's ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is Lone Star Fund VIii
(Bermuda), L.P. a Bermuda limited partnership which is controlled by its general partner, Lone
Star Partners VIil, L.P., a Bermuda limited partnership, which is controlled by its general partner
Lone Star Management Co, VIil Ltd, a Bermuda exempted limited company.

Registered No: 06764161 7
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DEIOitte‘ Doloitte & Touche LLP

1700 Market Streel
Phitadeiphia, PA
USA

Tel, 215 246-2300
Fax: 215 569.2411
www deloitie.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board o Directors
Sterling Mid-1Tuldings Limited

We have sudited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited
and subsidiaries (Suceessor 1o DFC Global Corp) (the “Company™), which comprise the consolidated
hitlance sheets as of une 3002016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of operations.
comprehensive loss, siackholder’s equity. and cash flows for the vears then ended. and the related notes
10 the consoliduted tinancial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is reaponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of' America: this
includes the design. implementation. and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
i presentation ol financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
CIror,

Aunditors” Responsibility

Qur responsibility is 1 express an opinionon these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America Phose standards require that we plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Bemcd sttements are free from material misstatement.

Anaodivinvolves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the fimancid siements. The pracedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
asseasinent of the rigks of material misstitement of the financial statements, whether due 1o fraud or crror.
Inmaking those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's
preparation and fair presentation ol the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company's internal contral. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
eviluating the approprisueness o accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
wecounting estintes nunde by aanagement, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
sEHCICs.

We belicove that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis tor
our audit opinion,

Wember of
Delitte Touche Tohmatsu Limted



Opinion

i our opinion, the consolidated Tinancial statements referred 10 above present fairly, in all material
respects. the tinancial position o’ Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries as of June 30, 2016
and 2015 and the resubts ot their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Siates of America.

We lun e also audited ihe adjusunents 1o the 2014 consolidated financial statements of the Company 1o
reflect the eftecis ol the retraspective adjustments to the acquisition date fair values for the June 13, 2014
acquisition o DEC Global Corp, by the Company discussed in Notes 3 and 13 to the consolidated
fianciad statements Cthe business combination™). Our procedures included audit procedures to evaluate
mmgement’s judgments iand estimates regarding, the fair values ascribed to all asseis acquired and
Tiabilities asstmed, and the resultant goodwill recognized in connection with the business combination. In
aur apinion. such rehospective adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applicd. However, we
ware moe engaged 1 andin review, oF applv any procédiires 16 tie 2014 consolidaied financial siatemens
of the Company other tham with respect 1o the retrospective adjustments and, accordingly. we do not
express an opinian ar iy other torm of assurance on the 2014 consolidated financial statements taken as
awhole.

Predecessar Auditors' Opinion on 2014 Financial Statements

The comolidated fingncial statements of the Company for the periods from June 14, 2014 to Junc 30, 2014
esterling Mid-Ttotdings Cimited ). and July 12013 1o June {3, 2014 (DFC Global Corp.). before the effects
of the retraspective adjustments to the acquisition date fair values tor the June 13, 2014 acquisition of DFC
Cilobal Corp. by e Company, discussed in Notes 3 and 13 1o the consolidated financial statements, were
audited by other auditors whase report. dated October 13, 2014, expressed an unmodified opinion on those
stittemenis,

Q/@zz + ek LLP

Seprember 28, 2010

Member of
Detostte Touche Tohmotsu Limted



Report of Independent Auditors

Board of Directors
Sterling Mid-Holdings Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sterling Mid-Holdings
Ltd. (Successor), before the effects of the adjustments 1o the Successor’s consolidated financial
statements to retrospectively apply the adjustments to provisional amounts recognized in
connection with the acquisition of DFC Global Corp (Predecessor) by Sterling Mid-Holdings Ltd.
(Successor) on June 13, 2014 described in Notes 3 and 13, and DFC Global Corp (Predecessor)
(collectively, the “Company™), which comprise the consolidated statements of operations.
comprehensive income (loss), stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the period from June 14,
2014 to June 30, 2014 (Successor) and the period from July 1, 2013 to June 13, 2014 (Predecessor),
and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free of material misstatement. whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements, before the
effects of the adjustments described above, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose ot expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting



estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above, before the effects of the adjustments
described above, present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated results of operations and
cash flows of Sterling Mid-Holdings Ltd. for the period from June 14, 2014 through June 30, 2014
(Successor), and of DFC Global Corp for the period from July 1. 2013 through June 13. 2014
(Predecessor) in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the adjustments to
retrospectively apply the adjustments to provisional amounts recognized in connection with the
acquisition of DFC Global Corp (Predecessor) by Sterling Mid-Holdings Ltd. (Successor) on
June 13, 2014 described in Notes 3 and 13. and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any
other form of assurance about whether such adjustments are appropriate and have properly applied.
Those adjustments were audited by other auditors.

St ¢ MLLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
October 13,2014



PART 1. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements
STERLING MID-HOLDINGS LIMITED.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (In millions)

June 30, 2015 Junc 30, 2016

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 138.0 $ 148.1
Restricted cash (Includes $0 and $3.1 in variable imerest entitics -sec note 10) 4.5 7.6
Consumecr loans, net:
Consumer loans 152.0 2345
L.ess: Allowance for consumer loan losses (19.6) (27.6)
Consumer loans. net (Includes $0 and $150.2 in variable interest entitics -scc note 1) 132.4 206.9
Pawn loans, net of an allowance o' $1.2 and $0.2 109.3 97.8
Loans in default. net of an allowance of $43.2 and $62.8 (Includes $0 and S17.2 in variable interest
entities -see note 10) 21.6 27.9
Other receivables 29.6 25.7
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 57.4 43.6
Current deferred tax asset 4.0
Total current asscts 496.8 339.6
Long term consumer loans, nct of an allowance of $1.7 (Includes $0 and $41.8 in variable intcrest
entities -se¢ note 10) — 41.8
Property and equipment. net of accumulated depreciation of $34.1 and $63.8 97.6 90.8
Goodwill and ather imangibles, net 806.4 769.9
Debu issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization o $6.8 and $14.7 28.7 309
Non-current deferred tax asset. net 1.4 149
Other 17.2 14.5
Total Assets S 1,458.1 $§ 1,522.4
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 32.6 23.2
Income taxes payable 0.5 8.3
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (Includes $0 and $0.8 in variable interest entities -sec note 10) 136.2 101.3
Current portion of long-term debt 45.2 63.3
Current deferred tax liabiliy 0.2 —
Total current liabilitics 214.7 196.0
Fair vatue of derivatives — 0.9
Long-term deferred tax liability 8.2 10.7
Reserve for uncertain tax positions 36.7 RING
l.ong-term debt (Includes $0 and $100.0 in variable interest entitics -sce note 10) 892.2 1.036.8
Other non-current liabilitics 37.4 28.2
Stockholders’ cquity:
Common stock, £1.00 par value: 10,000 shares authorized; 201 and 801 shares issucd and
outstanding at June 30, 2015 and Junc 30. 2016, respectively. — —
Additional paid-in capital 781.8 951.8
Accumulated deficit (374.8) (625.9)
Accumutated other comprehensive toss {138.1) (107.7)
Total stockholders® equity 268.9 218.2
Total Liabilities and Stockholders® Equity ) 1.458.1 § 1.522.4

Sce accompanying notes to consolidated financial staiements.



Thesc financial statements together with the accompanying notes w consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for
issuance by the Board of Dircctors on the date below and were signed on its behalf by:

S
§ Howard

Dircctor

Date: 3.0\, 0LF



STERLING MID-HOLDINGS LIMITED.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues:
Consumer lending
Check cashing
Pawn service fees and sales
Moncy transfer tees
Gold sales
Other
Total revenues
Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Provision tor loan losses
Occupancy
Purchased gold costs
Advertising
Depreciation and amortization
Maintenance and repairs
Bank charges and armored carricr service
Returned checks, net and cash shortages
Qther
Total operating expenscs
Operating margin
Corporate and other cxpensces:
Corporatc expenses
Other depreciation and amortization
Interest expense. net
Goodwill and other intangible assets impairment charge
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) loss
Loss (gain) on derivatives not designated as hedges
(Procceds trom) provision tor litigation seulements
L.oss on storc closings
Other expense. net
Loss beforc income taxes
Income tax provision
Net loss

(In millions)

Predecessor Successor
July 1, 2013 - June 14, 2014 - Year Ended Year Ended
June 13,2014 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2015 | June 30, 2016
b 602.0|S 200 ($ 3904 (% 4054
112.2 5.3 107.0 96.7
92.6 4.3 729 57.4
34.3 1.3 31.2 27.0
38.2 1.7 46.6 44.1
70.6 3.6 65.7 53.1
949.9 36.2 713.8 683.7
238.7 11.6 215.6 181.7
180.8 4.0 97.2 121.6
7.3 3.7 71.1 523
36.2 1.7 355 36.7
53.0 2.0 354 28.9
26.6 1.3 25.0 214
20.4 1.1 24 4 17.3
20.8 I.1 18.5 15.7
9.3 —_— 11.6 10.3
90.7 4.7 82.1 63.6
747.8 31.2 616.4 549.5
202.1 5.0 97.4 134.2
99.9 5.5 100.7 92.9
16.2 1.1 18.5 15.7
107.3 4.3 95.9 108.0
134.2 — 28.0 —_
(0.1) (0.1) 313 91.2
— 1.9 (16.1) —_
22,0 0.3) 22 4.1
1.0 5.7 5.6 7.0
29.9 23.2 142.3 57.5
(208.3) (36.3) (311.0) (242.2)
8.2 215 6.0 8.9
3 (216.5)$ (57.8) |8 (317.0)|3 (251.1)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statcments.




STERLING MID-HOLDINGS LIMITED.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(In millions)

Predecessor Successor
June 14, 2014

July 1, 2013 - - June 30, Year Ended Year Ended

June 13,2014 2014 June 30, 2015 | June 30. 2016
Net loss $ (216.5) |I$ (57.8) % (317.00$ (251.1)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustment ¢ 46.3 16.6 (154.7 31.0
Fair value adjustments for derivatives. net 53 — — (0.6)
Amortization of accumulated other comprehensive
income related to de-designated cash flow hedges 0.7 — — —
Other comprehensive income (loss) S - 323 |8 16.6 {$ (154.748 304
Comprehensive loss $ (164.2) 1§ (41.2) 1S (471.7Q4$ (220.7)

(1) The ending balance of the forcign currency translation adjusiments included in accumuiated other comprehensive income
on the balance sheet were gains (losses) of” $46.3 mitlion, $16.6 million. and $(138.1) million and $S(107.1) million as of’
the Predecessor period ended June 13, 2014 and the Successor period ended June 30. 2014, June 30, 2013 and June 30,
2016 respectively.

(2) Netor $1.4 mitlion of tax for the Predecessor period ended June 13, 2014 and $0.3 million ot tax for the Suceessor period
cnded June 30, 2016. The ending balance of the unrealized derivatives, net included in accumulated other comprehensive
income on the balance sheets were losses of $3.2 million for the Predecessor period ended June 13,2014 and 0.6 million
for the Successor period ended June 30. 2016.

(3) Netof $0.3 million of tax for the Predecessor period ended Junc 13, 2014,

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). net of related tax. included unrcalized losses on terminated cross-
currency interest rate swaps of $3.7 million for the Predecessar period ended Junc 13, 2014,

Sce accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



STERLING MID-HOLDINGS LIMITED.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS®' EQUITY
(In millions, except share data)
for the Predecessor period July 1, 2013 to June 13, 2014

C&'::::‘.‘::‘ : ::: k Additional Non- Acc:;::::.’: ted Total
- _ Paid-in Accumulated Controlling  Comprehensive  Stotkholders®
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Interest Income (Loss) Equity
Balance, June 30, 2013 40.112.266 S — 3 4473 S (7.3) § — § (15.1) S 424.9
Comprehensive {loss) income
Net loss (216.5) (216.5)
Other compiehensive income : 523 523
Total comprehensive loss (164.2)
Restinicted stock grams 283,248 —
Stuck options exercised 113,818 0.7 0.7
Vested portian of pranted restricted stock and
restricied stock unns 18.1 181
Repurchase of common stock (1,712,365) (21.5) (21.3)
Retirement of common stock (101507
Qther stock compensation 28 . 2.8
Balance, June 13,2014 ' 38,695460 S — S 4474 S (223.8) S — S 372 S 260.8

See accompanying notes o consolidated financial statements.
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Balance, Junc 14, 2014

STERLING MID-HOLDINGS LIMITED.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

(In millions, except sharc data)
for the Successor period June 14, 2014 to June 30, 2016

Comprehensive (loss) income

Net loss
Qther comprehensive incom

Total comprehensive income

Capital conteibution from an affiliate of Lone

Sur Fuads
Balance, June 30, 2014

Comprehensive (toss) income

Net loss
Other comprchensive incon

Towa$ comprehensive income

Capital comnibution from an affiliue of Lone

Svar Funds
Balance, Junc 30, 2015

Comprchensive (1oss) income

Net loss
Other comprehensive income

Towal comprehensive income

Capiwl conteibation from an affiliaie of Lone

Star Funds
Balance, June 30, 2016

Common Stack . Accumulated o
Outstanding Additional Tatal
Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive  Stockholder’s
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Income Fquity
[ — S — 8 — 8 — S J—
(57.8) (57.8)
e 16.6 16.6
(loss) 41.2)
100 700.0 700.0
101§ — S 7000 S (57.8) S 166 S 658.8
317.0) (317.0)
&< (1347 1347
(loss) (154.7)
100 818 $1.8
201 S — $ 781.8 S (374.8) § (138.1) § 268.9
) (251.1) S (251.1)
N 304 S 304
(loss) ) (220.7)
600 S 170.0 S 170.0
801 S — § 951.8 S {625.9) (102.7) S 2182

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



STERLING MID-HOLDINGS LIMITED.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLLOWS

(In millions)

Predecessor Successor
July 1, 2013 - June 14, 2004 - Year Ended June  Year Ended
Juoe 13,2014 June 30, 2014 30, 2018 June 30, 2016
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss S 216.5) |S (57.7) S (317.0) § (251.1)
Adjustments (o reconcile et income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation, accretion and amortization 48.1 2.4 50.4 45.2
Goodwill and other intangible assets impairment 1342 — 28.0 - —_
Change in fair value of derivatives not designated as hedges —_ 1.9 —_ 0.9
Provision for loan losses 180.8 ' 4.0 97.2 121.6
Non-cash stock compensation 209 — — —
Gain on sale of subsidiary {(1.6) —_ —_ —_
Gan on sale of loans held for investments —_ — —_ 1.9
Loss on disposal of fixed asscts 05 0.1 26.8 7.0
Gain on derivatives not designated as hedges _ — (16.1) —
Unrealized foreign exchange (gun) loss (0.1) (0.1) 313 9t.2
Deferred tax (benefit)/expense 4.6 373 (2.0) 2.1
Accrued transaction costs — 112,2) — -
Accretion of debt discount and deferred issuance costs 17.3 - —_ —
Change in assets and liabilities (net of effect of acquisitions):
i‘l:r;gfgicll decrease in pawn lvan fees and service charges 03 (0.3) 14 29
{Decrease) increase in finance and service charges receivable (19.0) 1.8 i21.8) 128.7)
(Increase) decrease in ather receivables (7.4) 4.4 2.7 53
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other 10.6 (9.5) 24,2 21.7
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued expenses and
other liabilities (1.2) (27.3) 385 (44.8)
Net cush provided by (used in) operating activiues S 1715 §S 155.2) S i61.8) S 125.5)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net (increase) decreasc in single payment loans (74.2) 1.9 (47.4) (61.0)
Net (increase) decrease in installment loans — —_ 31.2) (153.6)
Net {increase) decrease of pawn loans 8.0 (0.3) 4.6 (10.8)
Net increase in restricted cash _ _ i4.5) (a1
Proceeds vom sales of loans held for investments _ _ _ (13.0)
Acquisition of Predecessor, net of cash acquired _ (199.7) _ _
Acquisitions. nct of cash acquired (20.4) —_ t41.8) (0.4)
Additions to propenty and equipment (31.6) (0.4) (26.4) (38.9)
Disposal of a subsidiary. net of cash disposed of 7.2 — —_ —
Net cash used in investiag activities S (117.0) §$ {198.5) S (146.7) S (280.8)



STERLING MID-HOLDINGS, LTD.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — (continucd)

(In millions)

Cash flows from financing activitics:
Capual conteibution rem Lene Star Funds
Proceeds from securitization facitity
Procceds from issuance of long-term debt
Repayment of Predecessor debt
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options
Proceeds trom demand note from Lone Star Altiliates
Repayment of demand note from Lone Star Affiliates
Praceeds fram rvalving lineg o eredit
Repayment of long-term debt and revalving line of credit
Procceds from termination of ¢rass cusrency swaps
Repurchase of common stock
Payment of debtissuance and ather costs
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitics
Eftect of exchange raie changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash cquivalents at end of period
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Interest paid

Income taxes paid

Sce accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Predecessor
July 1. 2013 - Year Ended June  Year Ended
June 13,2014 June 30, 2016
— 818 § 170.0
—_ - 100.0
0.7 — —
— — 37.0
— — (11.0)
— 537.8 396.1
(96.0) (456.4) (358.5)
388 0.4 —
(21.5) — —
29) 0.3} {1.3)
(80.9) 163.3 326.3
9.2 (23.0) 9.9)
(17.2) i68.2) S 10.1
196.2 206.2 138.0
179.0 1380 § 148.1
S 553 |IS 332 s 90.1 97.1
S 173 IS — § 52 8 38



STERLING MID-HOLDINGS LIMITED.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFG GLOBAL CORP)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Business

Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited. ("SMHL". the "Company” or the "Successor”). a Jersey Channcl Islands company. is a
dircet wholly-owned subsidiary of Sterling Holdings Lid.. which is in urn a wholly-owned subsidiary of LSF8 Sterling
artners, L.P. ("LSFF8") a Bermuda partacrship and an alliliate ot Lone Star Funds ("Lone Star™), and was tormed on May 2,
2014, LSFS and Lone Star are referred 1o herein as "Parent” or "parent companies”. Prior to the acquisition of DFC Gilobal
Corp. on Junc 13. 2014, the Successor had no operating activity. Throughout these financial statements and notes. the term
"Predecessor®, refers o DEC Global Corp. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries prior to the change of control on Junc 13. 2014,
The werm "Successor” refers 10 Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited. following the acquisition of DFC Global Corp. by an affiliate of
Lone Star ("the Merger").

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepied
accounting principles in the United Siates ("GAAP"). and are those of Successor and the Predecessor. In the opinion of
management, all adjustments of a normal recurring nature considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. The
Predecessor is the parent company of Dollar Financial Group, lac. ("DFG™). The activitics of the Predecessor consist primarily
of'its investment in DFG. The Predecessor has no employees or operating activitics.

The Company and the Predecessor through their respective subsidiaries. provide retail financial services o the general
public through a network of 1197 locations (of which 1,188 are company owned) which are operating principally as The
Money Shop®. Money Mart®, InstaCheques®. Suttons & Robertsons®. The Cheek Cashing Store®. Sefina®, Helsingin Panui®™ .
Super Efectiva®, MoneyNow!™ and Express Credit Amanet® in the United Kingdom ("UK"), Canada. the United States ("US)".
Sweden. Fintand. Poland. Spain and Romania. This network of stores offers a variety of financial services including unsecurced
short-term consumer loans. secured pawn services. gold buying, check cashing, moncey transler services and various other
related services. In addition to our retail stores. we offer unsecured consumer loans online in the UK. the US. Canada. Sweden.
Finland and Spain. primarily under the brand names The Moncy Shop®. Payday UK®. Payday Express®, Money Mant®,
pavdayloan.ca®™. Risicum® and OK Money®. In Poland. we olter our products under the trade name Optima™ through a
system of brokers. call centers and a network of local representatives who receive compensation for their services. In Romania.
we ofTer secured pawn lending services. The Company exited its Dealers” Financial Services business efTective June 30. 2015.

As more fully discussed in Note 3 Business Combinations, Acquisitions and Divestiture. on June 13, 2014, Sterling Mid-
Holdings Limited acquired all the owstanding shares of the Predecessor tor a purchase price of approximatcly $378.7 million
e F f )
(the "Mecrger™).

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policics
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management 1o make estimates and
assumptions that afeet the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. On an ongoing
basis. management evaluates its estimates and judgments. including those related 1o revenue recognition, loss rescrves,
valuation allowance for deterred income taxes, litigation reserves. valuation of acquired tangible and intangible asscts and
liabilitics and impairment assessment of goodwill and other inangible assets. Management bases its estimates on historical
expericnee and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. the results of which form
the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities. Actual results may difter from these
cstimates.

Risks & Uncertainties

We are subject o regulatory oversight by various local. state. provincial and federal regutatory bodies. In the UK. we are
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA™). which recently granted us full authorization as a consumer lender. In the
U.S.. we are regulated by various states and by the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (*CFPB™). In Canada. we are
regulated by regulators and legislation at both the provincial and federal levels. Qur operations in Sweden are regulated by the

=
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STERLING MID-HOLDINGS, LTD.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policics (continued)

Swedish Financial Supervisory Authority. our Finnish operations by the Regional Statc Administrative Agency of Southern
Finland. and our Polish. Spanish and Romanian operations by various national regulations. We belicve our relationships with
our regulators in our key markets are good.

In the UK. the Company operates in a highly regulated industry which has undergone substantial regulatory change.
primarily as a result of the transition of aversight to the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA™) effective April |, 2014. On
February 17, 2016. the Company s UK afliliate. Instam Cash Loans Limited. trading primarily as The Money Shop. received
full authorization as a consumer lending tirm trom the FCA. Instant Cash Loans was previously operating under the FCA's
interim permission since April 1. 2014, The Company s consumer lending operations in the UK. which have historically been
principally single payment short-lerm loans., represented 17.1% ol consolidated consumer lending revenue for the year ended
June 30, 201 6. In connection with the regulatory oversight by the FCA. the Company has madc significant changes to its
consumer lending business within the UK including. but not limited 1o. (i) limitation on loan rollovers. (it) limitations on the
use of continuous payment authority to recover loans. and (iii) changes in marketing and other toan origination practices. The
Company has also revised the alfordability assessments used in loan originations and this change. and all other changes
déscribed herein, has resulted in a significant decline in outstanding consumer loans within the Company s UK businesscs.

Prior to April 1. 2014, in the UK. the Company's consumer lending activitics were primarily regulated by the Oftice of
Fair Trading (“OFT™). which was responsible for licensing and regulating companies that offer consumer credit. During fiscal
year 2013, the OF T announced significant changes to marketing, rollover and collection practices which have had and are
expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s short-term loan portfolio within its UK businesses. Eflective April |,
2014, the OF T wansferred regulatory authority over the consumer credit industry 1o the new FCA. The FCA is now the
regulator for. among others. credit card issucrs. payday foan companics. pawn brokers. rent-to-own companics. debt
management and coltection firms and providers of debt advice. The FCA is also responsible for regulating and setting conduct
standards for banks. credit unions and similar institutions.

In October 2013. the IFCA issucd a consultation paper addressing how it proposcd to regulate the consumer credit industry
when it assumed regulatory authority on April 1. 2014, On February 28. 2014, the FCA published its Handbook. which
confirmed and clarified the final form of the rules and limitations 10 which we would be subject under the FCA authority in the
UK. Among other things. the Handbook imposed a limitation of two rollovers and two uses of continuous payment authority
per loan. and enhanced aflfordability assessment criteria. which additional requircments are expected to negatively impact the
Company's UK operations for a transition period extending from implementation through the foresecable future.

On November (1. 2014, the FCA confirmed its July 2014 pavday loan price cap proposal. Beginning January 2. 2015, the
price cap structure includes the lollowing:

« Initial cost cap 01" 0.8% per day
e Dectault fee caps tixed at £13
« Towal cost cap ol 100%

During the year ended June 30. 2015 and June 30. 2016. the Company made various changes 1o its UK consumer lending
opcrations including. but not limited to. (i) introduction of a multi-payment loan product. (i) consolidation of its UK
operations, and (iit) reduced the number of retail stores in the UK. While the Company has not seen the full impact of these
initiatives. it is possiblc that these actions could resultin a further impairment of property and cquipment. goodwill and other
intangible assets in future periods, in addition to the recognition of assct impairments, lcase and employec termination costs
alrcady incurred during the prior and current tiscal vear. Furthermore, the contribution o' UK consumer lending revenue may
continue 1o decline in the near term as the Company continues to transition its consumer lending activitics within the UK.

In addition. in July 2010. the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act was enacted. which, among
other things. created the Consumer Financial Protection Burcau (the “CFPR™). In the United Suates. the CFPR has regulatory.
supervisory and enforcement powers aver certain non-bank providers of consumer tinancial products and services. such as us.
Under the CFPB’s short-term lending supervision program. which aims w ensure that short-term lenders are following federal
consumer financial faws in their US operations. the CFPB gathers information trom short-term lenders to evaluate their policies
and procedures, assess whether lenders are in compliance with federal consumer financial laws. and identify risks 10 consumers
throughout the lending process. Any restrictive action by the CFPB with respect to short-term consumer loans could have an
adverse impact on our business. results of operations and financial condition.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policics (continued)

The Company continues to work with Lone Star in respect of possible liquidity options. including, but not Himited (.
exploring alternative tinancing arrangements. In addition. the Company is now oftering new longer term installment loan
products in North America and the UK and continues 10 explore alternatives for reducing operating costs.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statcments include the accounts ot the Company and its subsidiarics. including
certain Trusts. which are considered variable interest entities (V1Es). The Company also consolidates other VIEs for which it
was deemed o be the primary beneficiary. Al intercompany balances and transactions have been climinated in consolidation.

Voting haerest Entities

Voting interest entities are entities that have suflicient equity and provide the cquity investors voting rights that enable
them 1o make significant decisions relating o the entity’s operations. For these entities. the Company’s determination off
whether it has a controlling interest is primarily based on the amount of voting equity interests held.  Entities. in which the
Company has a controlling {inancial interest through ownership ol the majority ol the entities” voting cquity interests, are
consolidated by the Company.

Investments in companics in which the Company has significant intluence over operating and tinancial decisions (but
does not own a majority of the voting equity interests) are accounted lor in accordance with the equity method of accounting.
Such investments are not significant 1o the Company s consolidated results of operations. financial position or cash flows.

Fariable Interest Entities

VIEs arc entities that, by design. cither (1) lack sufticient equity 1o permit the entity to finance its activities without
additional subordinated financial support from other partics. or (2) have cquity investors that do not have the ability 1o make
signiticant decistons relating 1o the entity's operations through voting rights. or do not have the obligation to absorb the
expeceted losses. or do not have the right to receive the residual returns of the entity. The most common type of VIE is a special
purpose catity ("SPE™). SPEs arc commonly used in sccuritization transactions in order to isolate certain asscts and distribute
cash tlows trom those asscts (o investors. As part o the Company’s two year reccivable sceuritizanion facility (the “Facitity™)
the Company’s subsidiarics in North America and the UK agreed 1o sell participations and/or beneficial interest in all of their
cligible outstanding consumer loan receivables to secure the Borrower’s obligation to the Lenders of the Facility (the Borrower
is a wholly-owned. bankruptey remote SPE).

The primary beneficiary of a VIE (i.c.. the party that has a conwolling Ginancial interest) is requived to consolidate the
asscts and liabilities of the VI, The primary beneficiary is the party that has both (1) the power 1o direct the activities of the
VIE that most significantly impact the VEE's cconomic performance: and (2) through its interest in the VIE. the obligation to
absorb losses or the right to reccive benelits from the VIE that could potentially be signiticant 1o the VIE. To assess whether
the Company has the power to direct the activities of a VIE that most significantly impact the VIE's cconomic performance. the
Company considers all the facts and circumsiances, inctuding its role in establishing the VIE and its ongoing rights and
responsibilities. This assessment includes first identifving the activities that most significantly impact the VIE's economic
performance: and second. identifying which party, if any. has the power over those activities. In general. the partics that make
the most signiticant decisions affecting the VIE are deemed to have the power to direct the activities of'a VIE. To asscss
whether the Company has the obligation to absorb losses of the VLI or the right to receive benefits from the VI that could
potentially be significant 1o the VIE, the Company considers all of its cconomic interests. including subordinated loans.
intercompany' notes, deferred purchase price. capital contributions. servicing tees and other arrangements deemed to be variable
interests in the VIE. This assessment requires that the Company apply judgment 10 determine whether these interests. in the
aggregate. are considered potentially significant 1o the VIE. Factors considered in assessing significance include the design of’
the VIE, including its capitalization structurc; subordination of interests, payment priarity; velative sharce ot interests held and
the reasons why the interests are held by the Company.

In the case of a consolidated VIIE used to secure a debt facility. the accounting is consistent with a sccured financing. (i.c..
the Company continues to carry the loans and would record the related securitized debt on its balance sheet).
Corrections to Previous Periods

During fiscal 2016. the Company corrected its accounting methodology for gold “buy back™ contracts. wherein the
Company acquires legal title and risk of loss to the gold and extends to the customer a limited option to repurchase the gold
within three months. Histarically, this activity was inappropriately reported as Pawn loans for US GAADP reporting. Gold

Il
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continucd)

acquired in such buy back arrangements arc now accounted for as purchased gold inventory (upon title and risk of loss transfer)
and recorded as a salc when the gold is sold. or smelied or sold to a gold dealer if the customer does not return to buy back the
gold.

The following table summarizes the impact of the corrections on the consolidated balance sheet as of June 30. 2015:

Description As Reported Restatement As Restated
Pawn loans, net ol an allowance S 117.0 WAOR) 109.3
Prepaid expensces and other current assets 49.7 7.7 574

The following table summarizes the impact of the corrections on the consolidated statement of operations for the year
ended June 30. 2015:

Description As Reported Restatement As Restated
Pawn service fees and sales $ 81.8 8N S 72.9
Gold sales 352 114§ 46.6
Purchased gold costs 330 25§ 355

The following table summarizes the impact of the corrections an the consolidated statement of cash flows for the vear
ended June 30, 2015:

Description As Reported Restatement As Restated
Cash tlow [rom operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other ) 248 § (0.6) S 24.2
Cash flow from investing activities:

Decreasc of pawn loans, nct 4.0 0.6 4.6

Reclassification to Previous Periods

In addition. as a result of restruciuring. fegal entity and facility consolidations in the UK during fiscal 2015, we identified
certain cost centers related to sales training and administration, facilitics and I'T functions supporting storc aperations which
were included in corporate expenses that should be included in operating expenses in the UK reporting unit. These
rectassifications between corporate expenses and operating expense were made during the 2016 fiscal year. The following table
retlects the reclassitication of certain operating and corporate expenses in the consolidated statement ot operations tor the year
canded June 30. 2015 10 conform with the presentation for the vear ended June 30. 2016:

Reclassification

Description As Reported adjustment As Reclassified
Satary and beactits $ 2174 $ (1.9 S 215.6
Occupancy 68.7 24 7t.1
Advertising 35.6 0.2) 354
Dcpreciation and amortization 253 0.3) 25.0
Maintenance and repairs 211 33 24 4
Other 78.9 3.2 82.1
Corporale expenscs 107.7 (7.0) 100.7
Other depreciation and amortization 18.1 04 18.5



STERLING MID-HOLDINGS, LTD.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The following table summarizes the impact of the reclassification on the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended June 30, 2015:

Reclassification As Reclassified

Description As Reported adjustment
Cash flow from operating activities:
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued
cxpenses and other liabilities 34.0 4.5 385
Cash Now from investing activitics:
Originations of pawn loans S (261) 261.0 S —
Repayment of pawn loans 265 (2635.0) —_
Net (increasc) decrease of pawn loans — (4.0) 4.0)
Netincrease in restricted cash — 4.5) (4.3)
Net (increase) decrease in consumer loans (78.6) 78.6 —
Net (increase) decrease in single payment loans — (47.4) (47.4)
Net (increase) decrcase in installment loans — 31.2) 31.2)

The following tables summarizes the recasting reflected in the Financing Receivable footnote 8 for the year ended June
30, 2015 1 reflect the realignment of the Company's product portlolio management strategies and the impact on the significant
credit metries:

Reclassification
Description As Reported Adjustment As Reclassified

Performing retail-based consumer loans - Gross 104.8 (104.8) —
Performing retail-based consumer loans - Allowance (13.2) 13.2 —
Pertorming internet-based consumer loans - Gross 47.2 47.2) —_
Performing internct-based consumer loans - Allowance (6.4) 6.4 —
Non-performing retail-based consumer loans - Gross 322 (32.2) —
Non-performing retail-based consumer loans - Allowance (28.3) 28.3 —_
Non-performing internet-based consumer loans - Gross 326 (32.6) —_
Non-performing internct-bascd consumer loans -

Allowance (14.9) 14.9 —_
Performing single pavment loans - Gross — 102.8 102.8
Performing single payment loans - Allowance — (6.1) (6.1)
Performing installment loans - Gross —_ 49.2 49.2
Performing instaliment loans - Allowance — (13.5) (13.5)
Non-performing single payment loans - Gross —_ 47.2 47.2
Non-performing single payment loans - Allowance — (32.4) 32.4)
Non-performing installment loans - Gross —_ 17.6 17.6
Non-performing installment loans - Allowance —_— (10.8) (10.8)
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STERLING MID-HOLDINGS, LTD.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continucd)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Reclassification
Description As Reported Adjustment As Reclassified
Retail-based consumer loans 1-30 days past duc 6.7 (6.7) —
Retail-based consumer loans 31-59 days past duc 3.1 @G.n —_
Retail-based consumcer loans 60-90 days past due 1.6 {1.6) —
Retail-bascd consumer loans greater than 90 days past duc 6.9 (6.9) —
Retail-based consumer loans Current 75 (75) -
Retail-based consumer loans recorded investment > 90
days and accruing L4 (1.4) -
Interngt-based consnmer Inans 130 dayve past due 4.5 {4.5) —_
Internet-based consumer loans 31-39 days past due 22 (2.2) —
Internet-basced consumer loans 60-90 davs past duc 2.6 (2.6) —
Internet-based consumer loans greater than 90 days past
duc 6.2 (6.2) —
Internet-based consumer loans Current 50.4 (30.4) —
Internet-based consumer loans recorded investment > 90
days and accruing — — —
Single payment loans 1-30 days past due — 10.6 10.6
Single payment loans 31-59 days past due —_ 6.8 6.8
Single payment loans 60-90 days past duc — 74 7.4
Single payment loans greater than 90 days past due — 224 224
Single payment foans Current — 102.8 102.8
Single payment loans recorded investment > 90 days and
accruing — — —
Installment loans (-30 days past duc — 7.5 7.5
Installment loans 31-59 days past due —_— 4.9 4.9
Installment toans 60-90 days past duc — 4.2 4.2
Installment loans greater than 90 days past duc —_ 9.2 9.2
Installment loans Current — 41 41
Instaliment loans recorded investment > 90 days and
accruing h 2.1 2.1
Description As Reported  Restatement As Restated

Loan Receivable on Nonaccrual Status

Retail-based consumer loans $ 322 % (32.2) 0

Iternet-based consumer loans 32.6 (32.6) 0

Consumer loans —_ 64.8 64.8

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from consumer foan fees includes interest income. finance charges. fees for services provided through our
company operated stores, service charges. minimum fees. late fees, nonsuflicient funds fees and any other fees or charges
permitted by applicable laws and pursuant to the agreement with the borrower and the type of loan. For unsccured short-term
consumer loans. which generally have terms ranging from 1 10 43 days. and for multiple payment leans up 1o 3 years. revenues

14
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are recognized using the interest method. Lean arigination fees are recognized as an adjustment o the yield on the related loan.
Our reserve policy regarding these loans is summarized below under ~Allowance for Consumer Loan Losses.” Revenues from
our cheek cashing. money order sales. money transter and other ancillary services reported in other revenues are all recognized
when the transactions are completed at the point-of-sale in the store.

Secured pawn loans are otlered at most of our retail tinancial services locations in the UK and Poland and at our pawn
shops in the UK. Sweden. Finland, Romania and certain of our Canadian and US retail stores. Pawn loans arc short-ierm in
nature and are secured by the customer’s personal property. which we refer to as a pledge. Atihe time of pledge. the loan is
recorded and interest and fecs, net of costs are acerucd for over the tife of the loan. If the loan is not repaid. the collateral is
deemed torfeited and the pawned item will, in most markets, cither go up for auction, or in the casc of gold, smelied by a
contractor 10 recover the value of the gold. If the item is sold or gold smelted. proceeds are used to recover the loan value.
interest accrued and fees. Generally, excess funds received trom the sale are repaid o the customers in the UK Sweden and
Finland. As with our unsecured short-term consumer loans. revenues are recognized using the interest method and loan
arigination lees. net. are recognized as an adjustment to the yicld on the related loan.

In Spain we conduct business similar o "pawn-broking” by applying a “buy back™ model because the legal tramework in
Spain requires a customer to legally wansfer the ownership and risk of foss of an object of value 10 us by exccuting a sale
agrecment. with an arrangement to buy back the item within a specilic imetrame (generally up w three months) at a pre-agreed
buy hack price. The customer agrees to pay the higher buy back price lor the cost of storing and satckeeping the item and 10
account for any expected increasc in the valuc of the item or. alternatively. pays the additional fee for the execution of the buy
back arrangement. [ the customer chooses not o buy back the object ot value within the agreed upon period. we may dispose
of the item cither through a sale in our retail window or smelting and sale of the gold. Inventory is recorded when the customer
sclls the gold object o us. and revenuc is recogaized and recorded when we sell the gold through our retail window or smelting
Pro¢ess.

Cush and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash in stores and demand deposits with financial institutions. Cash equivalents are defined as short-term.,
highly liquid investments both readily convertible wo known amounts of cash and so near maturity that there is insignificant risk
of changes in value because of changes in interest rates.

Consumer Loans, Net

tnsecured short-term and longer-term installment loans that the Company originates are reflected on the consolidated
batance sheets in consumer loans, net and arc stated at the principal amount less deferred fees. Consumer loaas, net are reported
net ol a reserve as described below under “loan Loss Allowance™,

Loans in Default

Loans in default consist of unsccured short-term and longer term instaliment consumer loans originated by the Company
which are in default status. An allowance for the defaulied loans reccivable is established and is included in the loan loss
provision in the period that the loan is placed in default status. The reserve is reviewed monthly and any change o the toan loss
allowance as a result of historical loan performance. current and expected collection patterns and current cconomic trends is
included with the Company's loan loss provision. I1'the loans remain in a defaulied stawus for an extended period of tine.
wpically 180 days. an allowance for the entire amount of the loan is recorded and the receivable is charged off.

Allowance for Consumer Loan Losses

The Company maintains a loan loss atlowance for estimated losses for unsecured consumer loans. To estimate the
appropriate level of loan loss allowance. the Company considers known relevant internal and external factors that aftect foan
collectability. including the amount ol outstanding unsecured loans owed to the Company. historical loans charged ofl. current
collection patterns and current economic trends. The Company’s current loan loss allowance is based on its net charge-ofls.
typically expressed as a percenmtage of loan amounts originated for the fast twelve months applicd against the principal balance
of outstanding loans. Management also considers internal and external factors such as the regulatory environment. credit quality
wrends. undenwriting and collection practices and other risks as necessary to estimate credit losses in the portfolio. Such
qualitative factors are used to reflect changes in the loan portfolios collectability characteristics not captured by historical loss
data. As these conditions change. the Company may need to record additional allowances in future periods,

Single Pavment Loans
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Generally, when a short-term loan is originated. the customer receives the cash proceeds in exchange for a post-dated
check or a written authorization to initiate a charge 10 the custumer’s bank account on the stated maturity date of the loan. I the
cheek or the debit 1o the customer’s account is returned from the bank unpaid. the loan is placed in default status and an
allowance for this defaulted loan reccivable is established and is included in loan loss provision expensc in the period that the
loan is placed in default status. This reserve is revicwed monthiy and any additional provision to the loan loss reserve as a result
of historical loan performance. current collcction patieras and current economic trends is included in loan loss provision
expense. i a loan remains in defaulted status for an extended period of time. typically 180 days. an allowance for the entire
amount ol the loan is recorded and the oan is charged ofl. Recoveries on loans that were completely charged ol are eredited w
the allowance when collected.

Installment Payment and Term Loans

The altowance is generally computed by applying loss tactors to outstanding loans principal balances over an estimated
loss emergence period. The loss emergence period represents the time period between the daie at which the loss is estimated o

have been incurred and the ultiimate realization ol that loss (through a charge-ofl). _Installment. payment and-term-loans not in- -+~ -~

- debt management” are collated based on the default or aging bucket with loss percentages considering the probability of loans
rolling 1o charge-ofT. For recognition of allowance for loan losses, US GAAP requires an impairment 10 be recognized when it
is probable a loss has been incurred. Estimated loss emergence periods may vary by product and may change over tme:
management applies judgment in cstimating loss emergence periods. using available credit information and wends. Loss factors
are statistically derived and sensitive to changes in delinguency status. and other risk lactors. The Company uses a number of
different forecasting models to estimaie both the probability of default and loss severity. including delinguency roll raie models
and credit luss severity models. In developing probability of default and loss severity assumptions. the Company also considers
known and anticipated changes in cconomic environment. unemplovment rates and other risk indicators.

This reserve is reviewed monthly and any additional provision 1o the loan loss reserve as a result of historical loan
performance. current collection patterns and current economic trends is included in loan loss provision expense. I a loan
remains in defaulied status for an extended period of time. typically 90 to 180 days. an allowance tor the entire amount of the
loan is recorded and the loan is charged oft. Loan sales on occasion occur prior (o veaching 180 days depending on the region.,
Recoveries on loans that were completely charged-ofi are eredited o the allowance when collected.

Management also considers intcrnal and external factors such as the regulatory environment. credit quality trends,
underwriting and collection practices and other risks as necessary 10 estimate credit losses in the portfolio. Such gqualitative
factors arc used to retlect changes in the loan portfolios collectability characteristics not capturcd by historical loss data. As
these conditions change. the Company may need o record additional allowances in future periods.

The Company’s allowance for loan losses for cach of the reporting periods has been calculated o reflect management’s
best estimate and judgment of the likely impact ot these changes on probable loan losses. However. these estimates arc
inherently uncertain, especially given that these regulatory changes have only been recently implemented by the Company. As
the ultimate impact of these regulatory actions and their eftects cannot be determined with precision. actual results could ditter
significantly from these estimates, Changes in those estimates resulting from the Company’s additional experience operating
under the revised regulations within the UK will be reflected in the financial statements in future periods.

Peavwnr Loans

Pawn loans are secured by the customer’s pledged item. which is gencrally 30% to 80% of the estimated fair valuc of the
pledged item. thus reducing. although not climinating. the Company’s exposure 1o losscs on defaulted pawn loans. the
Company’s historical redemption rate on pawn loans is in excess ol §0%. which means that for more than 80% of its pawn
loans. the customer repays the amount borrowed. plus interest and fees. and the Company returns the pledged item to the
customer. In the instance where the customer detaults on a pawn loan (fails w redeem). the pledged item is cither sold at
auction or sold 1o a gofd smehier or sold 10 a third party in the Company’'s retail stores within several weeks of the customer
default. Generally, excess amounts reccived over and above the Company's recorded asset and auction-related administrative
fees are returned 10 the customer.

In Spain we conduct business similar to "pawn-broking" by applying a “buy back™ model because the legal framework in
Spain requires a customer to legally transfer the ownership and risk of loss of an object of value to us by exccuting a sale
agreement. with an option to buy back the item within a specific timetrame {gencrally up to three months) at a pre-agreed buy
back price. The customer agrees 1o pay the higher buy back price for the cost ol storing and salckeeping the item and o account
for any expected increase in the value of the item or. alternatively. pays the additional fee for the exceution of the buy back
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option. I'the customer does not exercise the buy back option within the agreed option period. we may dispose of the item cither
through a sale in our rewail window or smelting and sale of the gold. Inventory is recorded at the time we buy the gold trom the
customer and sales is recorded when we sell the gold through the retail window or smelt and scll the gold to a gold dealer

Included in prepaid expenses and other current asscts are unredeemed pawn asscts consisting primarily of gold-based
merchandise of $35.6 million and $23.2 million at June 30. 2013 and Junc 30, 2016. respectively. The unredeemed pawn assets
are valued at the lower of cost or markel.

Determination of the allowance for consumer loan and pawn loan losses requires management o exercise significant
judgment about the timing. frequency. the estimated fair market value of the pawn asscts held as collateral. and severity of
credit losses inherent in the portfolio at the balance sheet date. The Company's allowance for loan losses for cach of the
reporting periods has been caleulated o reflect management’s best estimate and judgment of the likely impact of the factors
discussed above on probable loan losses. However, these estimates are inherently uncertain, especially given that the impact of
regulatory changes have only recently been implemented by the Company. As the ultimate impact of regulatory actions and
their efleets cannot be determined with precision, actual results coutd difter significantly from these cstimates. Changes in
those estimates resulting from the Company’s additional experience operating under revised regulation will be reflected in the
financial statements in tuture periods.

Other receivables
Other reccivables consist primarily of third-pany reccivables for money transfer services and income taxces.

Property and Iquipment

Property and cquipment are carricd at cost less accumutated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-
line method over the estimated uscful lives of the assets. which vary from three 1o five years, Leasehold improvements are
amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term (including renewal options that are reasonably
assured) or the estimated usclul life ofthe related asset. We capitalize eertain costs incurred in connection with developing or
obtaining software for internal use and amortize the costs on a straight-line basis over the estimated usctul lives ot each system,
typically five years.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goadwill is the excess of cost over the fair value of the net assets of the business acquired. In accordance with FASR
ASC Topic 350, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other ("ASC 3507) goodwill is assigned to reporting units. which the Company has
determined to be North America. UK. and Rest of World. No goodwill or intangibles has been assigned 1o corporate because of
the limited activities and it docs not generate revenues. Goodwill is assigned to the reporting unit that benetits trom the
synergics arising from cach particular business combination. The Company determines reporting units based on a review of’
uperating segments. and to the extent present. the underlying components. Where two or more components within the same
operating segment have similar cconomic characteristics. their results are aggregated into one reporting unit. Goodwill and
intangibles arc evaluated for impairment annually. or between annual impairment wests. if cvents accur or circumstances change
that would more likely than not reduce the tair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. To accomplish this. the
Company is required o determine the carrying value ol cach reporting unit by assigning the assets and liabilitics. including the
existing goodwill and intangible assets, 10 those reporting units. The Company tirst assesses qualitative factors to determine
whether itis more tikely than not that the fair values of its reporting units are less than their carrving amounts as a basis for
determining whether or not o perform the quantitative two-step goodwill impairment test. The Company is then required to
determine the fair value of cach reporting unit and compare it to the carrving amount of the reporting unit. 1f the carrying
amount of a reporting unit exceeds the tair value of the reporting unit, the Company is required to perform a second step to the
impairment test because this is an indication that the reporting unit goodwill may be impaired. Afier the second step of testing,
if"the carryving amount of a reporting unit exceeds the fair value ot the individual tangible and identifiable inangible assets. an
impairment loss would be recognized in an amount cqual to the excess of the carrying value ot the reporting unit’s goodwill
over the implied fair value of'its goodwill.

The Company considers the goodwill impairment testing process 1o be one of the critical accounting estimates used in the
preparation ot its consolidated financial statements. The Company normally estimates the tair value of'its reporting units by
using a discounted cash flow analysis or a market-basced approach. or a combination thercet. The discounted cash flow analysis
requires the Company o make various assumptions about revenues. operating margins. growth rates, and discount rates. These
assumptions are based on the Company’'s budgets. business plans. cconomic projections. anticipated fuwure cash Nows and
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marketplace data. Assumptions arc also made {or perpetual growth rates for periods beyond the period covered by the
Company’s long term business plan. Since we estimate the fair value of our reporting units by using an income approach, the
fair value estimates are sensitive (o the selection of the following inputs: the weighted-average cost ol capital rate used to
discount the projected cash Nows. and the market multiples applied to carnings. but are especially sensitive to the projected
future cash flows of the respective reporting unit. For the 2016 annual impairment test. the Market Approach was considered
but ultimately was not relied upon or allocated any weighting because the current operations of the business do not yet reflect
the operational change that will ake place o more closely align the operations of the Reporting Units with those of the
guidcline public companics.

The Predecessor performed its annual goodwill impairment test as of June 30, while the Successor performs its annual
goodwill impairment test as of April 1. The Company may be required to evaluate the recoverability of goodwill prior to the
required annual assessment if the Company experiences a significant disruption (o its business. unexpected significant declines
in its operating results or lorecasted operating results. divestiture or exit ol a significant component ol'its business. or a
significant change o the regulaory enviconment in which the Company operatcs.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs are amortized over the remaining term ot the related debt (sce Note ().

Operating Expenses

The dircet costs incurred in operating the Company's business have been classificd as operating expenses. Operating
expenscs include salaries and benetits of store and regional employecs. provisions tor loan losses, rent and other vecupancy
costs. purchasced gold costs. depreciation of propeny and cquipment used to operate the Company’'s business. bank charges.
armored carrier services, returned checks. net and cash shortages. advertising. maintenance and repairs and other costs incurred
by the stores, Excluded from operating expenses are the corporate expenses of the Company. which include sataries and
benefits of corporate cmployeces. professional fees and travel costs. amortization of intangibles and goodwill impairment
charges. Also excluded from operating expenses are acquisition-related costs. which are recorded in Other expense. net in the
consolidated statlements of operations.

Check Cashing Returned Item Policy

The Company charges operating expense for losses on returned checks during the period in which such checks are
returned. Recoveries on returned checks are eredited w operating expense in the period during which recovery is made. This
direet method for recording returned check losses and recoveries climinaies the need for an allowance for returned cheeks.

Income Taxes

The Company provides for income taxes and the related accounts under the asset and liability method pursuant 10
euidance provided by FASB ASC Topic 740. Incomc Taxes ("ASC 7407). Under this method. the Company recognizes deferred
tax assets and liabilitics for temporary difterences between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of the Company's
assets. liabilities. and expecied benefits of wtilizing net operating losses (“NOL™) and tax credit carry-forwards. The impact on
deferred taxes of changes in 1ax raics and laws. if any, arc applicd to the years during which temporary diffcrences are expected
to be settled and are rellected in the consolidated tinancial statements in the period of enactment. Tax expense includes US and
international income taxes plus the provision for US taxes on undistributed carnings of international subsidiarics not deemed 1o
be indefinitely reinvested.

Deferred tax assets are reduced by valuation allowances if. based on the consideration of all available evidence. itis more
likely than not that some portion ol the deferred tax asset will not be realized. Significant weight is given (o evidence that can be
objectively verified. and significant management judgment is required in determining any valuation allowances recorded against
net deferred wax assets. The Company evaluates deferred income taxes on a quarterly basis to determine if valuation allowances
are required by considering available evidence. Deferred tax assets are recognized when expected future taxable income is sufficient
to allow the related 1ax benefits to reduce taxes that would otherwise be payable. The sources of taxable income that may be
available 1o realize the benelit of deferred 1ax asscts are future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences. fuwure taxable
income exclusive of reversing temporary difierences and credit carry-forwards. taxable income in carry-back years. and tax planning
stratcgies which are both prudent and feasible. The current balance of the deferred 1ax valuation ailowance relates principally w
net operating loss carrylorwards and other deterred tax assets in the US and UK and certain other non-US jurisdictions. The
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Company befieves than its estimate of future wxable income is inherently uncertain, and iT its current or future operations generate
tosses. [urther adjustiments w the valuation allowance are possible. There is currently no assurance ot such future income before
inconic taxes.

The accounting for uncertaingy in income 1axes requires i more likely than notthreshold for tinancial siatement recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected 10 be taken in a tax rewrn. The Company records a liability for the difterence
between the (1) benefn recognized and measured for financial statement purposes and (i1) the tax position taken or expected to be
taken on the Company’'s tax return. To the extent that the Company’s assessment ot such 1ax positions changes, the change in
estimatc is recorded in the period in which the determination is made. The Company has elected 1o record any interest or penaltics
associated with uncertain tax positions as income tax expense. Uncertain ax positions arc classificd as noncurrent liabilitics unless
expected to be paid within one year,

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

FASB ASC Topic 813. Derivative and Hedying ("ASC 8157) requires companics to provide users of financial statements
with an enhanced understanding ol (a) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, (b) how derivative insteuments and
related hedged items are accounted for. and (¢) how derivative instruments and related hedged items aflect an entity’s financial
position. financial performance. and cash flows. ASC 813 also requires qualitative disclosures about objectives and strategics
tor using derivatives, quantitative disclosures about the fair value of and gains and losses on derivative instruments. and
disclosurcs about credit-risk-related comingent features in derivative instruments.

As required by ASC 815, the Company records all derivatives on the consolidaed batance sheets at fair value, The
accounting for changes in the fair value of derivatives depends on the intended use of the derivative. whether the Company has
clected o designate a derivative in a hedging relationship and apply hedge accounting and whether the hedging relationship has
satisfied the criteria necessary 1o apply hedge accounting. Derivatives designated and qualifying as @ hedge of the exposure to
changes in the fair value of an asset. Liability, or firm commitment attributable to a particular risk, such as interest rate risk. are
considered fair value hedges. Derivatives designated and qualifving as a hedge ot the exposure to variability in expected tuture
cash (lows. or other types of forecasted transactions. are considered cash flow hedges. Derivatives may also be designated as
hedges of the Torcign currency exposure ol a net investment in a foreign operation. Hedge accounting generally provides for the
matching of the timing of gain or loss recognition on the hedging instrument with the recognition of the changes in the fair
value of the hedged asset or lability that are auributable o the hedged risk in a fair value hedge or the carnings eflect of the
hedged forecasted transactions in a cash Mow hedge. The Company may enter inte derivative contracts tha are intended o
cconomically hedge certain of the Company’s risks. even though hedge accounting does not apply or we ¢lect not o apply
hedge accounting, See Nowe 12 lor turther information regarding the Company s derivatives. including the required disclosures
noted above.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

As ot June 30. 2016. the Company had operations in the UK, Canada. Sweden, Finland, Poland. Spain and Romania. The
financial statements of these foreign businesses have been translated into U.S. dollars in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 830.
Foreign Curvency Maners ("ASC 8307). All balance sheet accounts are transtated at the current exchange rate at cach period
end and income statement items are translated at the average exchange rate for the period: resulting translation adjustments are
made directly to a separate component of stockholders™ equity. Gains or losses resulting from forcign currency transactions
excluding the revaluation of non-functional currency denominated debt are included in other expense (income). net. Gains or
losses resulting from the revaluation of non-functional currency denominated debt are included in unrcalized forcign exchange
gain (loss). duc 1o the fact that cureency of the contractual arrangement is ditierent than the functional currency of the operating
entity.,

Stockholder's Equity

On December 14, 2011, the Company’s Board of Dircctors approved a stock repurchase plan. authorizing the Company to
repurchase in the aggregate up to 3.0 million shares ot its outstanding common stock. On September 20, 2012, the Company’s
Board of Dircctors reconfirmed the plan through September 30. 2013, On August 21, 2013, the Company's Board of Dircctors
authorized an increase of 3.0 million shares under the plan. Under the repurchase plan, the Company can repurchase shares of
its outstanding common stock on a discretionary basis. During the fiscal year ended June 30. 2013, the Company repurchased

3.499.881 shares of its outstanding common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $34.4 million. During the Predecessor
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period ended June 13, 2014 the Company repurchased an additional 1,712.363 shares of its outstanding common stock for an
aggregate purchase price of $21.5 miltion.

In conjunction with the Merger on June 13, 2014, DFC Global Carp sharcholders received trom an aftiliate of Lone Star
$9.30 in cash for cach share of DFC Global Corp.’s common stock they owned. [n addition 1o the $800.0 million 10.50%
Senior Secured Notes due 2020 that was issucd o retire Predecessor debt. Lone Star contributed $700.0 mitlion as a capital
contribution.  During the fiscal vear ended June 30. 2015 and 2016. Lone Siar contributed an additional $81.8 million and
$170.0 million. respectively in capital. partially o finance the acquisition of certain assets of Cash Store in Canada discusscd
below. fund loan book growth and genceral operating activitics.

Deferred Compensation Plun

The Company maintains a voluntary self-directed. non-qualified deferred compensation plan for certain exceutives and
other highly compensated employees. Under the plan, participants may elect to defer receipt of a portion of their base salary
. and-annualincentive-bonus. Amounts-deferred-arc-invested-at-the-diréction o ftheemplovec-inorvarious mutoal=fund=tike -
investment options. All investments are held in a rabbi trust and are recorded at fair value as trading securities and included in
other asscts in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. The amount of compensation deferred is credited o each
participant’s deferral account and a deferred compensation liability is recorded in accounts payable and other non-current
liabilitics in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. This liabitity equals the recorded asset and represents the Company s
obligation 1o the plan participants. The investments in the rabbi trust are classificd as wrading securitics and changes in their
values arc recorded in the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations. The carrying value of the investment securitics
of the rabbi trust and the related deferred compensation liability totaled $8.8 million as ol June 30. 2014. In conjunction with
the Mcrger on Junc 13. 2014, all the assets in the rabbi trust was liquidated and distributed to the participants. and the trust was
terminated in 2015,

Equity Method Investment

The Company uses the cquity method of accounting for its invesunents in entities in which it has significant influcnce;
gencrally. this represents an ownership interest of between 20% and 50%. As a result of the Merger. the Company's cquity
mcthod investment was recorded at 1air value (S11.3 million). The carrying value of the Company’s equity method investment at
Junc 30. 2015 and 2016 was $10.1 million and S8.8 million. respectively.  The difference between the fair value and the
amount ol underlying equity in net assets ($2.0 million and S1.1 million at June 30. 2013 and Junc 30. 2016, respectively) was
treated as cquity methad goodwill and was not amortized.

Troubled Debt Restructuring

When the terms of Consumer toan are modificd. consideration must be given as 1o whether or not the medification
results in a Troubled Debt Restructuring ("TIR™). A modification is considered 10 be a TDR when both a) the barrower is
experiencing tinancial difliculty and b) we grant a concession to the borrower. These considerations require signiticant
Judgment and vary by portiolio segnment. In all cases. the cumulative impacts of all modifications are considered at the time of
the maost recent modification.

IFor term loans. various qualitative factors are utilized for assessing the financial diflicuity of the borrower. These
include. but are not limited to. the borrower's default status on any of its debis. bankruptey and recent changes in financial
circumstances (10ss of job, cic.). A concession has been granted when as a resubt of' the moditication we do not expect to collect
all amounts duc. including interest accrued at the original contract rate. Types of modifications that may be considered
concessions include. but are not limited w. extensions of terms at a rate that does not constitute a market rate. a reduction. or
forgiveness of principal or interest owed.

In addition to the maodifications noted above. on oceasion we may extend contraciual terms of loans following a
missed payment upon a series ot consecutive payments. A restructuring that results in only a delay in payment that is deemed
1o be insignificant is not a concession and the maodification is not considered 1o be a TDR.

These modifications arc generally not considered TDRs because the extension is not considered significant. Also, on
occasion we may change the payment frequency at the borrowers request from bi-weckly o monthly or vice versa. In order o
assess whether a restructuring that results in a delay in payment is insignificant. we consider the amount of the restructured
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payments subject to defay in conjunction with the unpaid principal balance or the collateral value of the loan. whether or not the
delay is significant with respect to the frequency of payments under the original contract, or the loan's original expected
duration.

Asset Retirement Obligations

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 410, Asser Retirement and Environmental Obligations (*ASC 410™) the Company
has identified certain Asset Retirement Obligations ("ARQO") that arc legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-
lived asscts. Such liabilities are required to be initially recorded at estimated (air value and the related assct retirement costs are
capitalized by increasing the carrying amount of the related assets by the same amount as the liability. Assct retirement costs
are subscquently depreciated over the usctul lives o the related assets. Subseguent 1o initial recognition, the Company records
the period-1o-period changes in the ARO liability resulting from the passage of time and revisions to cither the timing or the
amount of the original estimate of undiscounted cash Nlows. The Company de-recognizes ARO liabilities when the related
obligations arc scttled. At June 30. 2013 and 2016, $1.9 million and $1.5 million, respectively, of ARQ was included in Other
non-current liabilities in the Consolidated Balances Sheets.

Restructuring Activities

The Company continues to execute on restructuring plans in the US. Canada, and the UK. As a result, the Company
may incur s¢verance expenses, store and facility asset write-downs, consulting expenses and other contractual obligations. The
recognition of such costs require management to project estimate closure costs. asset performance during wind-down and the
Company’s ability w sublease or cancel lease obligations.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In March 17, 2016, the FASB issucd ASU 2016-08 - "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). Principal
versus Agent Considerations (Reporting Revenue Gross versus Net)". This new guidance in the new revenue standard clarilics
how an entity should identify the unit of accounting (i.c.. the specified good or service) for the principal versus agent evaluation
and how it should apply the control principle to certain types of arrangements. such as service transactions. by explaining what
a principal controls before the specitied good or service is ransferred to the customer. The amendments re-frame the indicators
in the guidance 10 focus on cvidence that an entity is acting as a principal rather than as an agent. The new standard is effective
for annual reporting periods beginning after December 152017, The Company wili be evaluating the potential eftect that the
ASU will have on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In February 25. 2016. the FASB issued ASU 2016-02 - "Leases”. This is a comprehensive new lease accounting standard.
provides revised guidance on accounting for lease arrangements by both lessors and lessces. The central requirement of the new
standard is that lessees must recognize lease related assets and liabilities tor all leases with a term longer than 12 months. The
Company is evaluating the effect the standard will have on the Company's consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures. and expeets a material change to the balance sheet due to the recognition of right-of-use asscts and lease liabilitics
related to the Company's porttolio of real-cstate leases. The new standard is cttective for the Company in liscal year 2020. with
carly adoption permitted.

In January 2016. the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“"FASB™) issucd ASU 2016-01. Financial Instruments—
Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Mcasurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities ("ASU 2016-017),
which requires that cquity investments. except tor those accounted for under the equity method or those that result in
consolidation of the investee. be measured at fair value. with subsequent changes in fair value recognized in net income,
Howcever. an entity may choose 10 measure cquity investments that do not have readily determinable fair values at cost minus
impairment, it any. plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly transactions for the identical or a
similar investment of the same issuer. ASU 2016-01 also impacts the presentation and disclosure requirements for financial
instruments. ASU 2016-01 is effective for the Company annual period beginning alter December 13, 2018, Early adoption is
permiticd only for certain provisions. The Company doces not expect that the adoption of ASU 2016-01 will have a material
cftect on its consolidated financial statements.

On November 20. 2013, the FASB issucd ASU No. 2013-17, "Balance Sheet Classitication of Deferred Taxes” ("ASU
2013-177). 10 simplify the presentation of deferred income taxes. ASU 20135-17 requires that deferred tax asscts and liabilitics
he classified as non-current in a classified statement of financial position. Under prior guidance. an entity was required (0
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separate deferred income tax asscts and liabilities into current and non-current amoums. The current requirement that deferred
1ax asscts and liabilitics of’a tax-paying component of an entity be ofset and presented as a single amount is not aflecied. For
non-public entitics. the new guidance is eftective for annual periods beginning afier December 15, 2017, and inteeim periods
within annual periods beginning afier December 135, 2018, with carly adoption permiued. We adopted the new guidance on a
prospeetive basis for the fiscal year ended Junce 30. 2016. Financial statements for prior periods were not restrospecively
adjusted. There was no impact on our results of operations as a result of the adoption of ASU 2015-17.

In September 235, 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-16 - "Simplifving the Accounting for Measurement-Period
Adjustments”. This new guidance eliminates the requircment that an acquirer in a business combination account for
measurement-peciod adjustments retrospectively. Instead, an acquirer will recognize a measurement-period adjustment during
the period in which it determines the amount of the adjusiment, including the effect on carnings of any amounts it would have
recorded in previous periods if the accounting had been completed a1 the acquisition date. The guidance is cftective for the
Company beginning in fiscal year 2017, with early adoption permitted. The Company ig- ovaluating the potentinl impact of
adopting the new guidance and does not expect that it will have a material effect on its consolidated financial position.

In April 2013, the FASB issucd ASU 2015-3. “Simplifving the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs™ w simplify the
presentation of debt issuance costs. This new guidance requires that debt issuance costs related 1o a recognized debt liabiliy be
presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrving amount of the associated debt liability. consistent with the
required presentation for debt discounts. The guidance is eflfective for annual reporting periods and interim periods within those
annual reporting periods beginning atier December 15, 2013, our fiscal year 2017, Early adoption is permitied. This new
guidance is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated tinancial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issucd ASU 2013-05. Intangibles—Goodwill and Other—Internal-Use Software (Subtopic
350-40): Customer s Accounting for Fees Paid in a Cloud Computing Arrangement ("ASU 2015-057). which defines specific
criteria that entitics must apply to determine if a cloud computing arrangement includes an in-substance software license. The
result of'the assessment will direct the entity to apply cither software licensing or service contract guidance to record the related
fees. ASU 2013-05 is cftective for annual periods. including interim periods within those annual periods. beginning afier
December 13, 20135 and can be prospectively or retrospectively applicd. Early adoption is permitted. The Company does not
expect that the adoption o ASU 2013-05 will have a material efiect on its consolidated tinancial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02. Consolidation (Topic 810): Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis
("ASU 2015-027). which provides guidance for reporting entitics that are required to evaluate whether they should consolidate
centain fegal entitics. In accordance with ASU 2015-02. all legal entitics are subject to reevaluation under the revised
consolidation model. ASU 2013-02 is effective Tor public business entities for annual periods. and interim periods within those
annual periods. beginning afier December 13, 2013, Early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect that the
adoption ol ASU 2015-02 will have a material ellect on its consolidated financial staiements.

In August 2014, the FASB issucd ASU No. 20t4-13. Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern (Subtopic
205-40): Disclosure of Uncertainties abour an Entity s Ability 10 Continue as a Going Concern. The guidance requires an entity
to cvaluate whether there are conditions or events. in the aggregate. that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability o
continuc as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issucd and to provide related
toatnote disclosures in certain circumstances. The guidance is eflective for the annual period ending atier December 13, 2016.
and for annual and interim periods thereafier. Early application is permitted. The Company docs not believe the adoption of this
ASU will have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statcments.

In May 2014. the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09. Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The ASU
requires an entity 1o recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled tor the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers. The ASU will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP when it becomes
cffective. ASU 2014-09 also requires additional disclosure about the nature. amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows arising from customer contracts. including significant judgments and changes in judgments and asscts recognized
from costs incurred 1o obtain or [utfill a contract. The new standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning afier
December 13, 2016. including interim periods within that reporting period. tn July 2015, the FASB aflirmed its proposal to
deler the efleetive date of ASU 2014-09 1o annual reporting periods beginning after December 15,2017, Early application is
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not permitted. The standard permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative efiect transition method. The Company has
not yet selected a transition method. The Company will be evaluating the potential eitecet that the ASU will have on the
consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

3. Business Combinations and Acquisitions

During fiscal 2016 the Company did not make any significant acquisition or sell any of its businesses other than the
acquisition of a small tranchisce in Eastern Canada for $0.4 million. all of which was assigned o goodwill.

On FFebruary 6. 2015, National Moncy Mart Company ("NMM"), a wholly owned Canadian subsidiary of the Company.
completed the acquisition of certain assets, customer receivables and customer lists from The Cash Store Financial Services Inc.
(*Cash Storc”). including 150 Cash Sterc and Instal_oans locations throughout Canada. As previously disclosed, this
ransaction was funded cntirely with capital conribution from Lone Star Funds. Through June 30, 2013, the purchase price
paid was $41.8 million. which resulied in an increase in goodwill o $30.7 million. calculated as the excess purchase price over
the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. Approximately $23.0 million of the goodwill from this acquisition is
deductible for tax purposes. Management's valuations of the fair vatue of tangible assets acquired and liabilitics assumed arce
basced an assumpiions and cstimates of the Company’'s fair value allocations. The table below presents the final fair value
allocated 1o the asscts acyuired and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date in accordance with ASC 805 (in millions):

Consumer loans S 1.2
Prepaid expenses and ather current assets 0.2
Computers 0.1
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilitics {0.4)
Net tangible assets acquired N
Goodwill 30.7
Purchasc price $ 41.8

On June 13, 2014, Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited acquired the outstanding shares of' the Predecessor for a purchase price
ol approximately $378.7 million. The acquisition was accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting. Lone Siar's
acquisition ol the Company will provide the Company with the capital 1o expand and recapitalizes the Company. Under
acquisition accounting. tangible and identifiable imangible asscts acquired and liabilitics assumed was recorded au their
respective estimated (air values. Management's valuations of the fair valuc of tangible and intangible assets acquired and
liabilities assumed was based on assumptions and cstimates of the Company’s fair value allocations.

During the year ended June 30. 2013, the Company finalized the purchase accounting and fair value measurements for
substantially all assets and liabilitics for the acquisition by Sterling Mid-Holdings. Limited. As a result of the final purchasc
price allocations, certain of the fair value amounts previously estimated were adjusted during the measurement period. These
measurement period adjustments related 10 updated valuation reports and appraisals received from our external valuation
specialists. as well as revisions to internal estimates. The changes in estimates recorded in tiscal 20135 include an increasc in
property and equipment of $9.6 million: an increase in Liabilities related 1o an unfavorable facility fease of $3.2 million; an
increase in non-current deferred tax asset of $11.2 million: an increase in income taxes payable of $2.7 million: an increasce in
the reserve for uncertain tax positions of $11.0 million; and a decrease in deferred income taxces of $10.2 million. These
measurement period adjusiments together with the immaterial correction to previous period for intangible assets of $21.1
million as discussed in Note 2 above resulted in an increase to goodwill of §22.8 million. The allocation of goodwill among
reporting units located in foreign jurisdictions during fiscal 20135 resulted in forcign currency transiation adjustments which
increased goodwill and other comprehensive income by $11.3 million for the Suceessor period from Junc 14, 2014 (o0 Junc 30.
2014. The purchase accounting adjustments resulting from a reconciliation of the tax accounts to tax returns filed resutted in a
decrease w the income tax provision of $13.8 million which was retrospectively adjusted o the consolidated statements of
operations tor the Successor period ended June 30. 2014, Similarly. the consolidated statements of comprehensive income for
the Successor period ended June 30. 2014, was adjusted to reflect the foreign currency translation adjustment e goodwill
described above.
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3. Business Combinations and Acquisitions (continued)

The fair value of Consumer loans and loans in default is $161.5 million. with a gross contractual amount of $2835.8
million. The Company expects $124.3 million w be uncollectible. The fair value of Pawn loans is $149.4 million, with a gross
contractual amount of $152.1 million. The Company expects $2.7 million o be uncollectible.

Goodwill in the amount of” $844.0 was recognized for the Merger. and is calculated as the excess of the consideration
ransteered over the fair value of the net assets recognized and represents the tuture economic benefits avising trom other asscts
acquired that could not be individdally identified and separately recognized. Specifically. goodwill recorded as pant of the
acquisition of the Predecessor includes:

. any intangiblc asscts that do not qualify for scparate recognition. such as asscmbled workforce: and
. the value of the going-concern element of the Predecessor's existing business
Approximately $S208.6 million of the goodwill is deductible for tax purposcs.

The table below presents the estimates and value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date
bascd on the best information it has received 1o date in accordance with ASC 803.(in millions): -

Cash ‘ s 1790
Consumer loans 135.6
Pawn loans 149.4
Loans in delaul 259
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 82.3
Property and cquipment 128.0
Other non-current asscts 43.3
Definitc-lived intangiblc asscts acquired 84 4
Accounts payable (21.3)
Accrued expenses and other liabilitics (112.4)
Income taxces pavable (14.4)
FFair valuc of derivatives (15.0)
Deferred 1axes 2.9
Dcbt (1,052.9)
Other non-current liabilitics (67.1)
Measurement period adjustments (nct) (L.7)
Net liabilitics assumed (434.0)
Goodwill 832.7
Total purchase price S 378.7

In connection with the Merger, $39.2 million in acquisition-related expenscs were incurred. which are reported as other
expenses. net in the consolidated statement of operations. $22.7 miflion of these expenses were incurred in the Predecessor
period ended June 13, 2014 and $16.5 million were incurred by the Successor for the period from May 2. 2014 (the date of
incorporation of Sterling Mid-Holdings, Lid.) to Junc 30, 2014,

The foltowing acquisitions of the Predecessor have been accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting.

During fiscal 2044, the Company acquircd Gemgain Limited. which operates 14 pawnbroking stores in the UK rading
undcr the name TGS Pawnbrokers. The aggregate purchasc price was $12.5 million. which resulted in an increase in goodwill
of $5.2 million. calculated as the excess purchase price over the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired. Additionally. the
Company complcted two acquisitions in Spain. the first being Crirama. S.A. which operates 27 pawnbroking stores. The
aggregate purchase price was $8.2 million. which resulted in an increase in goodwill of $6.1 million. calculated as the excess
purchasc price over the fair value of the identifiabie asscts acquired. The sccond acquisition in Spain was Belen Oro. S. L.
which opcrates onc pawnbroking store in Madrid. The aggregate purchase price was $3.6 million. which resulted in an increase
in goodwill of $3.5 million, calculated as the excess purchase price over the (air value of the idemtifiable asscts acquired.
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Management’s valuations of the fair value of tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed. is based on
cstimates and assumptions.

Onc of the core stratcgices of the Company is 10 capitalize on its competitive strengths and enhance its leading market
positions. Once of the key clements in the Company's strategy is the intention to grow its network through acquisitions. The
Company believes that acquisitions provide it with increased market penctration or in some cases the opportunity to cater new
platforms and geographics with de novoe expansion following thereafier. The purchase price of cach acquisition is primarily
based on a multiple ol historical carnings. The Company’s standard business modcl. and that of its indusury. is one that dous not
rely heavily on tangible assets and. therefore. itis common to have a majority of the purchase price allocated to goodwitl, or in
some cases, intangible assets.

4, Goodwill and Other Intangibles

The following 1able reflects the roll-forward of intangible assets (in millions):

Goodwill: June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016
Goodwill - beginning batance ) 8440 S 748.7
Impairment charges (18.9) —_
Additional goodwill duc to acquisition 30.7 0.4
Currency translation adjustment (107.1) (23.3)
Goodwill - ending balance S 7487 S 723.6
Amortizable intangible asscts: Juae 30, 2015 June 30. 2016
Accumulated Accumulated
Cost Amortization Cost Amortization
Purchased wechnology $ 266 S 56 § 253 § 10.4
Trade names 43.2 2.6 354 4.0
Virious contracts 6.0 0.8 — —
Accumulated impairment charges (10.2) (1.1) — —_
Total amortizable intangible assets ¢ $ 65.6 § 79 S 60.7 § 14.4

(1) Amounts include the impact of forcign currency transiation of $(9.1) million and $(4.1) miilion tor the Successor
period ended June 30. 2013 and year ended June 30. 2016. respectively.

The remaining useful life of purchased technology and trade names is 2.9 vears and 17.9 years. respectively.
Goodwill is the excess of purchasc price over the fair value of the net asscets of the business acquired.

Goodwill is evaluaed tor impairment on an annual basis or between annual tests if events occur or circumstances change
that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. To perform the impairment
testing. the Company first assesses quatitative factors 1o determine whether it is more fikely than not that the fair values of'its
reporting units arc less than their carrying amounts as a basis for determining whether or not 1o pecform the quantitative two-
siep goodwill impairment test. The Company then estimates the fair value of cach reporting unit not meeting the qualitative
criteria and comparces their fair values to their carrying values. It the careying value of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the
Company determines the implied fair value of goodwill for that reporting unit by deducting the estimated fair value of its asscts.
other than goodwill, from its overall fair value. If the implicd fair valuc of goodwill is less than its carrying amount. the
Company recognizes an impairment loss for the difference.

There were no changes to the Company's reporting unit structure during the year ended Junc 30. 2016, The Company
conducted its annual impairment test of its goodwill as of April . 2016 of its reporting units consisting of North America, UK.
and Rest of World. There were no impairment charges recorded as resuit of the Step | impairment test. For the 2016 annual
impairment test. the Market Approach was considered but ultimately was not relied upon or allocated any weighting because
the current operations ol the business do not yet reflect the operational change that will take place o more closely align the
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operations of the Reporting Units with those of the guideline public companics. The significant assumptions used in
determining the lair values of the North America. UK. and Rest of World reporting units were discount raies of 20.1%, 22.8%
and 27.9% respectively. with long-term growth rates of 3%. Additionally. the assumptions also include high revenuc growth
rates in the near werm 1o reflect projected growth.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, we completed an interim test for goodwill impairment as a result of
cvents and circumstances occurring during this interim period that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of certain
rcporting units below their respective carrving amount, We identified interim impairment indicators resulting trom: (i) the
Company’s revenucs. results of operations and resulting cash flows for the three and six months ended December 31, 20135 were
well betow the results of the comparable prior year period tor alt the reporting units. except tor the US Reail reporting unit:

(ii) the continued negative transitional impact of the rutes and limitations published by the FCA on February 28. 2014 on the
Company’'s UK revenues and cash flows from operations; and (iii) the risks and uncertainties of the Company’s MILES
program during the current fisgal year

During the fiscal year ended 30. 2013, the Company completed an interim test for goodwill impairment as a result of
cvents and circumstances occurring during this interim period that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of certain
reporting units below their respective carrying amount, The Company identitied the tollowing interiny impairment indicators in
certain of the Company’s operating units: (i) a reduction in operating income compared to previously forecasted carnings and
cash flows. (ii) the Company's decision to exit and closc its DFS reporting unit and its eCommerce operations in Poland and the
Czech Republic. During the three months ended March 31, 2015, the Company recognized an additional impairment charge of’
$8.3 million related to the remaining balance of the net book value of the intangibles related o the DES reporting unit,
Additionally. the Company recognized an impairment charge of $13.1 million to goodwill related to the eCommerce operations
in Potand and the Czech Republic. The impairment charges retated to our DFS reporting unit were the result ot a significant
decrease in future projections because of the inherent uncerainty in increasing market share and the availability of obtaining
financing to e¢nable the reporting unit to offer competitive alternatives o DFS' service member customers. These estimates are
inhcrenuy uncertain,

The Company conducted its annual impairment test of its goodwill as of April 1. 2013 of its new reporting units
consisting of North America. UK. and Rest of World. There were no impairment charges rccorded as result of the Step
impairment test.

Goodwill as of December 31. 2014 had been assigned 1o reporting units using the relative fair value method. which at
that time was US Retail. Canada Retail. UK Retail. Europe Retail. cCommerce and DFS. No goodwill had been assigned to
corporate becausc of the limited activities of the corporate reporting unit. Goodwill is assigned to the reporting unit which
benetits from the synergics arising from cach particular business combination. As a result of the events and circumstances noted
above. we performed our interim goodwill impairment test by determining the carrying value of cach reporting unit. which
requires the assignment ol the assets and liabilities. including the existing goodwill and intangible assets. 10 those reporting
units. We then estimated the Lair value of cach reporting unit and compared it o the carrying amount o the respective reporting
unit.

For fiscal 2014 and 2013, the fair values of reporting units are estimated using a weighted average of a discounted
fulure cash flows technique (income approach) and a guideline public company market multiples technigue (market approach).
For the 2016 annual impairment test, the market approach was considered but ultimately was not relied upon or allocated any
weighting because the current operations of the business do not vet reflect the operational change that will 1ake place w more
closely align the operations ot the Reporting Units with those of the guideline public companics. The most significant
assumptions used in the discounted cash flow fair value technique are the projections used to derive fuuee cash flows and the
weighted average cost of capital used 1o discount such projections. The discounted cash flow analysis requires us to make

-Aarious assumptions about revenues. operating margins. growth rates. and discount rates. These assumptions are based on our
budgets. business plans. cconomic projections. regulatory guidelines. anticipated future cash flows and marketplace daa.
Assumptions arc also made for perpetual growth rates for periods beyond the period covered by our tong term business plan.

We completed Step | of our interim goodwill impairment test during the three months ended December 31, 2014 and
concluded that the fair values of our DFS reporting unit was less than its carrving value. As a result. a preliminary Step 2 of the
goodwill impairment test was performed tor the DEFS reporting unit. We recognized an interim goodwill impairment charge of
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approximaicly $3.8 million during the three months ended December 31. 2014, which represents our best estimate of the
impairment loss based on the latest information and cash flow projections avaitable. Additionally, we recognized an
impairment charge of $0.3 million relaed o DFFS Trade Name finite-lived intangible assct. The DFS Trade Name finite-lived
intangible valuation was calculated using a reliel from royvalty valuation method. The significant assumptions used in
dewermining the fair value of the MILES program intangible were a 23.5% discount rate, a pre-tax rovalty rate of 10%, a 20%
annual revenue growth rate and a 3% long-term revenue growth rate. The fair value of all the other reporting units were
signiftcantly above #ts carrying vatue at December 31,2014, The significant assumiptions used in determining the fair values
of'the US Rertail. DFS. Canada Retail, Europe Retail UK Retail and eCommeree reporting units were discount rates of 12.53%.
18.0%. 14.5%. 20.0%. 16.0 and 23% respectively. with long-term growith rates ranging from 1% 10 3%.

During the three months ended March 31. 2014, the Predecessor completed an interim test for goodwill impairment as
aresult of events and circumstances occwrring during the interim period that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of
certain reporting units below their respective carcying amount. The Predecessor identified interim impairment indicators
resulting from: (i) a further decline in the Predecessor's stock price and market capitalization since the prior (iscal quarter; (ii) a
significant reduction in forecasted carnings and cash tlows based on projections developed during the month of March 2014
and announced on April 2, 2014 and (iit) the Predecessor's agreement to be acquired by an aflilizie of Lone Star Funds dated
April 1. 2014 for $9.50 per share. which was significantly below the book vatue of its stockholders' equity at March 31, 2014,
prior 1o the recognition of the impainment charges discussed herein, The signiticant reduction in carnings resulted in part from
the communications with the OFT in February and March 2014 regarding the Predecessor’s compliance with the enhanced
regulatory requirements ot the FCA.

As disclosed in the Predecessor's annual consolidated financial statements for the fiscat year ended June 30, 2013,
goodwill was assigned to reporting units. whicl it had determined to be United States Retail, Canada Retail. United Kingdom
Retail, Europe Reail. eCommerce and DFS. No goodwill had been assigned w the corporate operations because of its limited
activities. Goodwill was assigned 10 the reporting units which benefit from the synergies arising from cach particular business
combination. As a result of the events and circumstances noted above. the Predecessor performed its interim goodwill
impairment test by determining the carrying value of cach reporting unit, which requires the assignment of the asscets and
liabilitics. including the existing goodwill and inmangible asscts, 10 those reporting units. The Predecessor then estimated the fair

-alue of cach reporting unit and compared it to the carvying amount of the respuctive reporting unit.

The fair values of reporting units are estimated using a weighted average of a discounted future cash flows technique
(income approach) and a guideline public company market multiples technique (market approach). The most significant
assumptions used in the discounted cash low faie value teehnigue are the projections used o derive future cash lows and the
weighted average cost of capital used to discount such projections. The discounted cash flow analysis requires the Company to
make various assumptions about revenucs. operating margins, growth rates. and discount rates. These assumptions are based on
the Company's budgets. business plans, cconomic projections, regulatory guidelines, anticipated future cash tlows and
marketplace data. Assumptions are also made for perpetual growth rates for periods beyond the period covered by our long 1erm
business plan.

The Predecessor completed Step 1 ofits interim goodwill impairment test during the three months ended March 31,
2014 and concluded that the Tair values of the DFS. Europe Retail and eCommerce reporting units were {ess than their
respective carrving values. As a result. a preliminary Step 2 of'the goodwill impairment 1est was peclormed for thése reporting
units. The Predecessor recognized a preliminary goodwill impairment charge of approximately S121.3 million during the three
maonths ended March 31, 2014, which represented its best estimate of the impairment loss based on the fatest information and
cash tlow projections available.  Additionally. it recognized an impairmeat charge of $5.8 million related 1o DFS' MILES
program indefinite-lived intangible asset. The MILES program indefinite-lived intangible valuation was calculated using a
relicl from royalty valuation method. The significant assumptions used in determining the fair value of the MILES program
asset were a 23% discount rate, a pre-tax royalty rate of’ 10%, a 22% annual revenuc growth rate and a 3% long-term growth
vate. The significant assumptions used in determining the fair values of the DFS. Europe Rewil and eCommerce reporting units
were discount rates of 22.0%. 22.0% and 21.5%. respectively. with a 3% long-term growth rate.

The impairment charges related to the Predecessor's DFS reporting unit were the result of an increase in discount rates
due to the increased risk of not meeting future projections, as well as reduced projections. The estimates ol tuture cash tlows
for the DFS reporting unit were in large part dependent on increased market share as a result of more competitive financing
alternatives 1o DFS' service member customers. Those estimates were inherently uncertain,
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During the period ended Junc 13, 2014. the Predecessor finalized the interim estimated impairment of the DFS, Europe
Retail and cCommeree goodwill. The total goodwill impairment charge for the Predecessor period ended June 13. 2014 was
S128.4 million. which represenied an increase of $6.9 million from the prefiminary goodwill impairmen charge recorded
during the fiscal third quarter ended March 31. 2014, principally duc to the finalization of the valuation of intangible assets and
the caleulation of deferred taxes.

Since the Company estimates the fair value ol'its reporting units by using a combination of an income approach and a
market approach. the fair value estimates are sensitive to the selection of the following inputs: the weighted-average cost of
capital rate used o discount the projected cash flows. and the market multiples applied o carnings. but are especially sensitive
t the projected future cash flows of the respective reporting unit. The Company's estimates of future cash flows in its
cCommerce reporting unit include the following significant yet inherently uncertain growth and profiabitity assumptions:

. Growth within the Company's on-line lending business in jurisdictions in which the Company has recently entered
and where the Company has reeently expericneed significant growth. such as Canada. Spain and Poland:

. Moderation of toan losscs. as its borrowers and potentially some of its competitors adjust to the impending revised
rcgulations within the UK for renewals and collections:

. Growth in market share resulting trom consolidation within the industry as a number of existing competitors will
unlikely make the necessary investments to comply with the impending revised payday loan regulations within the
UK.

. Improved margins within the Company's UK businesses principally resulting from revised underwriting criteria in

conjunction with its expectation of servicing more credit worthy customers which is expected o improve credit
quality from current levels,
. Introduction of a multi-payment loan ("MPL") product in certain jurisdictions

The Company's estimate ol future cash flows for its UK Retail reporting unit include the following significant and
inherenuy uncertain growth and profitability assumptions:

. Modcration of loan losscs. as its borrowers and potentially some of'its competitors adjust o the impending
revised regulations within the UK tor rencwals and collections.
. Growth in market share resulting from consoidation within the industry as a number of existing competitors

will unlikely make the necessary investments o comply with the impending revised payday loan regulations
within the UK.

. Improved margins. principally resulting from revised underwriting criteria in conjunction with its expectation
of servicing more credit worthy customers which is expected to improve credit quality from current fevels.

While these assumptions are inhereatly uncertain, especially given the Aluidity of the proposed regutatory changes
within the UK. the Company believes that such assumptions are reasonable and appropriaie when considering all available
markct information as ol the date ol the interim impairment west. as well as the Company s past expericnees in similar
jurisdictions such as Canada and the US. which had previously implemented significant changes o regulations for single
payment loans. Furthermore. the weighted average cost of capital that has been applicd wo the cash flows of the respective
reporting units when caleulating the fair value of the reporting units have been adjusted to reflect the inherent risks and
uncertaintics addressed herein.

“The fair value of the Predecessor's Europe Retail reporting unit was negatively impacted principally by the reduction
in gold prices and start up costs associated with new store openings in Poland and Spain.  The estimates of future cash flows
for the Europe Retail reporting unit are in farge part dependent on the projected growth and profitability of our store-based
operations in Spain and Poland. which were inherently uncertain.

The significant decline in the fair value of the Europe Retail reporting unit resulied from (i) a signilicant increase in
the weighted average cost of capital to reflect the increasing uncertainties in forecasted carnings. (i) reductions in forecasted
carnings to retleet the expectation of continued depressed gold prices. greater competition in emerging markets and less
contribution {rom store openings. and (iii) reductions in market valuations.

The tailure 10 achicve one or more of the Company's anticipated business model assumptions described herein. or the
impact of the implementation of final single payment loan regulations in the UK that are different than those contemiplated in
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the Company’s forecast could tead w additional goodwill impairment of the Company's Europe Retail or ecCommerce reporting
units. and any such timpairments may be matcerial, '

In the period ended June 13. 2014, the Predecessor performed an additional goodwill impairment test because
additional interim impairment indicators were identified due 1o the significant reduction in the Company's forecasted carnings
tor the fiscal year ended June 30. 2013, While the fair values ol certain reporting units. most notably UK retail and E-
commercee, declined significantly from the interim goodwill impairment test performed in the three months ended March 31,
2014, the carrying values ot these reporting units also declined significantly. principatly because ot the significant reduction in
outstanding consumer loans since the prior interim goodwill impairment test, No additional goodwill impairment was
recognized as a result of the June 13. 2014 interim goodwill impairment test.

Amortization of Intungible Assets

Amortization expense ol'intangible assets was $8.8 million, $0.7 million $9.4 mitlion and $7.4 million. tor the
Predecessor period ended June 13, 2014, the Successor period ended June 30, 2014, year ended June 30, 2015 and Junc 30,
2016. respectively.

Estimated amortization expense of intangible assets during the next five fiscal years is shown below (in millions):

Years ended June 30, Antunt

2017 $ 8.7
2018 8.7
2019 8.7
2020 ' 2.0
2021 2.1
Total $ 30.3
S. Supplementary Cash Flow Information

Non-Cash Transactions

Recorded non-cash goodwill and other intangible assets impairment charges were $134.2 million for the Predecessor
period ended June 13, 2014, and $0. $28.0. and $0 million for the Successor period ended June 30, 2014, 20135 and 2016.
respectively.

6. Stock-Based Compensation Plans
Prececessor

The DFC Global Corp. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2005 Plan™) states that 2,578,043 shares of the Predecessor’s
common stock may be awarded to its employees or consultants. The awards may be issued at the discretion of the Predecessor’s
Board of Dircctors as nonqualitied stock options. incentive stock options or restricted stock awards. The number of shares
issucd under the 2003 Plan is subject to adjustment as specified in the 20035 Plan provisions. No options may be granted under
the 2003 Plan alter January 24, 2013,

On November 15, 2007. the Predecessor's stockholders adopted the DFC Global Corp. 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (the
<2007 Plan™). The 2007 Plan provides for the grant of' stock options. stock appreciation rights, stock awards. restricted stock
unit awards and performance awards (collectively, the “Awards™) to non-cmployee members of its Board of Directors. officers.
cmployees. independent consultants and contractors. and any its subsidiaries. On November 11, 2010, the Predecessor's
stockholders approved an amendment to the 2007 Plan. Under the terms ol the amendment, the maximum aggregate number of
shares of its common stock that could be issucd pursuant to Awards granted under the 2007 Plan is 10,500,000; provided.
however, that 1.67 shares will be deducted (rom the number of shares available for grant under the 2007 Plan for cach share that
underlics an Award granted under the 2007 Plan on or after November 11, 2010 for restricted stock. restricted stock units,
perlormance awards or other Awards for which the tull value of such share is transferred by the Predecessor to the award
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recipient. The shares that could be issued under the 2007 Plan could be authorized. but unissued or reacquired shares of the
Predecessor’s common stock. No grantee could reccive an Award relating to more than 750,000 shares in the aggregate per
fiscal year under the 2007 Plan.

Stock options and stock appreciation rights granted under the aforementioned plans had an exercise price cqual to the
closing price ot the Predecessor’s common stock on the date of grant.

The Predecessor accounted for stock-basced compensation under the provisions of ASC Topic 718 (ASC
718). Compensation — Stock Compensation. and it had clected 1o apply the with-and-withow method 10 assess the realization
of excess tax benetits. Compensation expense. net of the related ax benefit related to share-based compensation. included in the
consolidated statements of operations for the Predecessor period ended June 13, 2014 was $6.0 miilion.

The following table presents information on stock options:

Weighted
Weighted Average Aggregate
Average Cantractual Intrinsic
Fxercise Term Value
Price (vears) (8 in millions)
Options outstanding at Junc 30, 2013 3,080,697 $ 13.27
(2.634.198 sharcs exercisable)
Granted 749,149 $ 13.41
Fxercised (812.112) § 6.73
Forteited (3,017,734) § 15.07
Options owstanding at Junc 13, 2014 — § — 0 S —
Exercisable at June 13. 2014 — S — 0 S —

Upon the change in control related to the acquisition of the Predecessor by Lone Star, all unvested share-based awards
were immediately vested and scutled or canceled. No share-based payment awards or plans were issued or adopted by the
Successor.

The aggregate intrinsic value in the above table reflects the total pre-tax intrinsic vatue (the difference between the
Predecessor’s closing stock price on the last rading day of the period and the excrcise price of the options. multiplicd by the
number of in-the-moncy stock options) that would have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised
their options on June 13. 2014, the date of the Merger. The intrinsic valuc of the Company’s stock options changes based on the
closing price of'the Predecessor’s common stock. The total intrinsic value of options exercised for the year ended June 30, 2013
and the predecessor period ended June 13, 2014 was $1.2 million and $2.4 million. respectively. As of Junc 13, 2014, there was
no unrecognized compensation o be recognized. Compensation expensc is recorded ratably over the requisite service period.
Cash reeeived fram stock options exercised tor the year ended June 30. 2013 and the predecessor period ended June 13, 2014,
the date of the Merger. was $1.7 miltion and $7.4 million. respectively.

The weighted average fair valuc of cach emplovee option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for gramts during cach of the reporting
periods:

Predecessor Successor

Period July Period June

1.2013 to 14, 2014 to
June 13. 2014 June 30, 2014
Expected volatility 48.8% —%
Expected life (years) 5.8 0.0
Risk-free interest rate 1.95% —%
Expected dividends None None
Weighted average fair value $ 634 § —
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6. Stock-Bascd Compensation Plans (continued)

Restricted Stock Unit awards ("RSUs") granted under the 2005 Plan and the 2007 Plan became vested after a designated
period of time (“time-based™) which is generally on a quarterly basis over three years. Compensation expense was recorded
ratably over the reguisite service period. Compensation expense related to RSUs was measured based on the fair value using the
closing market price of the Predecessor’s common stock on the date of the grant. The Predecessor had 567.145 of RSUs that
became vested as of June 13, 2014, the date of the Merger. These RSUs had a weighied average price of §9.50.

Information concerning restricted stock unit awards is as follows:

Restricted Weighted
Steck Unit Average
Awards Grant

Outstanding at June 30, 2013 499,565 S 18.69
Granted 585,525 § 13.18
Vested (931,735) § 15.73
Forfeited (153.335) § 15.63
Outstanding at Junc 13, 2014 — —

As ol June 13. 2014, there was no unrecognized compensation cost related 10 unvested restricted share-based
compensation arrangements granted under the plans. The wotal fair value ol shares vested during the years ended June 30, 2013
and the Predecessor period ended June 13. 2014, the dawe of the Merger, was $8.2 million and $14.7 miltion, respectively.

7. Employee Retirement Plans

Retirement benefits are provided to substantially all U.S. full-time employees who have completed 1.000 hours of service
through a defined contribution retirement plan. The Company matches 100% of employee contributions up o 3% and 30% of’
employee contributions exceeding 3% up to 5%. The Company’s forcign subsidiaries ofler similar plans. the terms of which
vary based on statutory requirements.

Towal contributions charged o expense were $3.8 million, $0.2 million. $3.9 million and $3.3 million for the Predecessor
period ended June 13. 2014, and the Successor period ended June 30. 2014, 2015 and 2016. respectively.

The Predecessor’s Deterred Compensation Plan’s (the ~“Plan™) primary purpose is 10 provide tax-advantageous assct
accumulation for a sclect group of management and highly compensated cmiployeces. Eligible employees may clect 1o defer up
t0 30% of basc salary and/or 100% o1’ bunus carned. The Administrator, a person appointed by the Company’s Board of
Dircctors, may further limit the minimum or maximum amount deferred by any plan participants, for any rcason.

There were no discretionary contributions o the Plan approved by the Board of Directors during the Predecessor period
ended June 13, 2014, the Successor period ended June 30, 2014, June 30, 20135 and Junce 30. 2016.

The Predecessor provided for certain post retirement benefits and additional reticement income w its Chief Excceutive
Oflicer ("CEQO™) and its Exceutive Vice President and Chiet Financial Ofticer ("EVP and CFO™) under the terms of their
employment agreements. Subject to service requirements. the CEOQ would reccive a lump-sum payment which was the actuarial
cquivalent of an annual benefit of $430.000 payable in equal monthly installments during his lifetime commencing the month
lollowing the applicable Vesting Date. as defined in his employment agreement. and $2235.000 annual survivor benetit pavable
on his subsequent death to his surviving spousc for her tifetime. Subject 1o service requirements. the EVP and CFO was entitled
1o receive an annual benefit ol $200.000 payable in equal monthly installments commencing the first month after he ceases to
be employed by the Company, subject W certain conditions as defined in his agreement. Furthermore. upon the CFQ’s death, his
spousc would be emitled to receive an annual benelit of $100,000 payable in equal monthly installments during her lifetime.
Upon the change in control. approximately $9.6 million was paid to satisfy all post retirement obligations.

The Company recorded net expense of $0.2 million for the Predecessor period ended June 13, 2014, respectively. There
were no recorded expense for the Successor period ended June 30. 2014, Junce 30, 20135 and June 30. 2016 associated with the
alorementioned retivement plans.

As aresult of the the change in control associated with the acquisition of DFC Global Corp by an affiliate ot Lone Star.
the Company was required to make lump-sum Supplemenmtal Exccutive Retirement Plan (SERP) payments o its Chief
Exccutive Ofticer and its Chiet Financial Ofticer of approximately $9.6 million. These SERP benetits had been tunded through

31



Table o Contenig

STERLING MID-HOLDINGS, LTD.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

Company Owned Life Insurance (COLI) and mutual funds held in a rabbi trust. These lump-sum payments were made in the
Successor period with a portion of the proceeds from the acquisition. Subsequent o June 30, 2014, the Company liguidated
mutual funds and paid approximately $9.0 million to satisfy the post-retirement obligations. The trust was dissolved in January
2013,

8. Financing Reccivables

The Company offers a variety of shorti-term loan. installment and longer term instaliment foan products and credit
services to customers who typically cannot access other traditional sources of credit and have non-traditional loan histories.
Accordingly, the Company has implemented proprictary predictive scaring models that are designed o limit the dollar amount
of loans it oflers o customers who statistically would likely be unable 1o repay their loan. The Company has instituted control
mechanisms and a credit analytics function designed to manage risk in its unsecured consumer loan activitics. Collection
acuvitics are also an important aspect of the Company’'s operations, particularly with respect to its unsceured consumer loan
products duc to the relatively high incidence of unpaid batances beyond stated terms. The Company operates centralized
collection centers to coordinate a consistent approach to customer service and collections in cach ot its markets. The
Company’s risk control mechanisms include, among others, the daily monitoring of initial return rates with respect o payments
madc on its consumer loan portfolio. Because the Company s revenue from its unsecured consumer lending activitics is
generated through a high volume of small-dollar financial transactions. its exposure to loss from a single customer transaction is
minimal.

The following reflects the credit quality of the Company's loans receivable. Generally, foans are determined to be
nonperforming when they are ane day past due without a payment for short term consurer loans and gencerally 90 days past duc
without a payment tor longer-term installment loans depending on regional collection patterns and product type

Consumer Credit Exposure

Credit Risk Profile Based on Payment Activity
(in millions)

As of June 30, 2015
Consamer 1,0ans Pawn Loans
Single payment Loans Installment Loans
Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance
Performing S 1028 § 6.1 S 492 (13.5) $% 1105 § (1.2)
Non-performing 47.2 (32.4) 17.6 (10.8) — —
$ 1500 § (385) § 66.8 $ (24.3) § 1105  $ (1.2)

As of June 30, 2016

Consumer Logns Pawn Loans
Single payment Loans Installment Loans
Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance
Performing S 969 $ “n s 1988 § (364) S 980 S (0.2)
Non-performing 52.6 (38.7) 204 (12.7) _ —_
$ 1495 § (428) $ 2192 § (49.1) § 980 § (0.2)

The fotlowing presents the aging of the Company s past duc loans receivable as of June 30. 20135 and June 30. 2016:
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8. Financing Reccivables (continued)

Age Analysis of Past Due Loans Receivable
(in millions)

As of June 30, 2018

Greater >90

‘Than 90 Total Days

1-30 days 30-59 days 60-89 days days Past Total Financing and
Past Due Past Due Past Due Due Past Due Current Receivables Accruin

Single paymentloans  § 106§ 68 S 74 S 224 S 472 S 1028 §  150.0 "

Installment loans 7.5 4.9 4.2 2 25.8 41.0 66.8 2.1
Pawn loans —_ —_ —_ — _ 110.5 110.3 —
Total S i18.1 § 1.7 S 1.6 S 316 S 730 S§ 2543 § 3273 § 2.1

As of June 30, 2016

Greater

Than 90 ‘Total > 90 Days

1-30 days 30-59 days  60-89 days days Past Total Financing and
Past Due Past Due Past Due Due Past Due Current Receivables Accruing
Single paymentloans  § 119§ 7.7 § 69 S 261 S 526 S 969 S 1495 S —_
Installment loans 17.7 10.0 7.3 26.1 $ 6.1 158.1 219.2 6.6
Pawn loans — — — — — S 980 98.0 —
Toual $ 296 § 177 § 142 § 522 § 1137 § 3530 $ 466.7 S 6.6

The following details the Company’s loans receivable that are on nonaccrual status as of June 30, 2015 and Junc 30.
2016:

1.oans Recefvable on Nonaccrual Status (in millions) Juane 30, 2018 June 30, 2016
Consumer loans 64.8 73.1
Pawn loans

Total $ 64.8 § 73.1

The tollowing table presents changes in the allowance lor consumer and pawn loans ceedit losses (in millions) tor the
yvear ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2016:

June 30, 2015 Junc 30, 2016

Allowance for Consumer Loan Losses (1):

Beginning Balance : $ 40 § 62.8
Provision for loan losses 93.4 119.7
Charge-ofls (119.35) (199.9)
Recoveries 90.1 112.7
Effect of foreign currency translation (3.2) (3.2)

Ending Balance $ 628 $ 92.1

(1) Excludes $1.2 million and $0.2 million of allowance reserve against the Company’s pawn loans receivable recorded
during June 30. 2013 and Junc 30. 2016. respectively.

During the vear ended ended June 30. 2016. the Company sold approximately $140.0 million of non-pertforming
consumer loans for proceeds of approximatcly $13.0 million and recorded a gain on salc of $1.9 million in other revenue.
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8. Financing Receivables (continucd)

During the vear ended June 30. 2015, the Company sold approximately $14.4 million of nonperforming consumer loans for

proceeds of approximatcly $8.0 million and recorded a reduction 0f $2.0 million in the provision for loan losscs.

9. Supplemental Balance Sheet and Income Statement Information

Property and cquipment at Junc 30. 20135 and 2016 consist of (in millions):

June 30, 2015

June 30, 2016

Land $ 02 § 0.2
Leaschold improvements 48.8 36.7
Computer sofiware and cquipment - 579 69.2
Equipment and furniture 24.8 28.5
. 1317 -154.6

l.ess: accumulated depreciation (34.1) (63.8)
Property and equipment, net $ 97.6 90.8

Depreciation expense amounted to $34.0 million, $1.7 miltion. $34.0' million and $29.7 million for the predecessor period

ended June 13, 2014, the successor period ended June 30, 2014, June 30. 2015 and June 30, 2016 respectively. Included in
depreciation expense is $9.9 miltion. $0.5 million. $9.9 million and $12.9 million of depreciation expense related to computer

software and cquipment for the Predecessor period ended June 13, 2014 and the Successor period ended June 30.

30. 20135 and June 30, 2016. respectively.

Accrued expenscs and other liabilitics consists of the following (in millions):

2014, June

June 30, 2015

June 30, 2016

Accrued legal scttlements(1) S 1.0 § 3.6
Accrued payroll and incentives 314 38.6
Accrued restructuring 65.1 24.7
Accrued for sceuritization — 0.8
Other accrued expensces and liabilitics 38.7 335
Total accrued expenses and other liabilitics S 136.2 § 101.2

{1) Other long-term liabilitics include an additional accrual for legal settlements of $20.8 million and $20.0 million at

June 30. 20135 and 2016. respectively.

The components of other expense. net are as follows (in millions):

Transaction-related expenses (a)
Acceleration of amortization ot share-based
payment expensc (b)
Restructuring and other related charges (c)
Gain on sale of Merchamt Cash Express, Ltd.
Decbt refinancing costs
Other, nct

Total Other expense. net

Period from
July 1, 2013 to

Period from
June 13, 2084 to

June 13, 2014 June 30, 2014
(Predecessor (Successor Year Eaded June  Yeor Ended June
Period) Period) 30, 2016

$ 165 $ 227 $ 79 $ 0.7
1.9 — —_ —
— — 109.1 55.4

(1.6) — —
23 — — —
0.8 0.5 25.3 4
$ 299 S 232§ 1423 § 57.5
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(2) Expenses related to the acquisition of DFC Global Corp by an affiliate of Lonce Siar and other
acquisitions by the Company during liscal 2015 and 2016. These expenses include advisory
and protessional tees. commitment fees and other transaction relaled expenses.

(b)  Expense related w the acceleration of amortization of unrecognized share-based payments as o
result of the acquisition of DIFC Global Corp by an aftiliate of Lone Star on June 13, 2014,

(¢} Restructuring and other charges includes employee severance and other costs related to the
reorganization ol the Company’s business.

(d) Expenses related to the establishment ot a restitution fund resulting from DFS® consent order
with the CFPB.

The recognition of acquisition-related costs for the Predecessor include costs incurred by Sterling Mid-Holdings. Lid.
prior to the date of acquisition but following its incorporation on May 2. 2014. Sterling Mid-THoldings Limited was incorporated
o complere the acquisition ol the Predecessor by Lone Star,

10. Debt

The Company had debt obligations as of June 30. 2015 and 2016 as follows (in millions):

June 30, June 30
2018 2016

ABL credit facility 830 § 120.8
DI'C Finance Corp 10.5% Scnior Secured Notes due 2020 800.0 800.0
Scandinavian credit facilities 44.7 45.1
Reccivables Sccuritization facility — 100.0
Note Payable-Lone Star affiliate —_ 26.0
Other 9.7 8.2

Total debt 937.4 1,100.1
Less: current portion of debt 45.2) § (63.3)

Long-term debt $ 8922 § 1,036.8

Receivables Securitization Facility

On December 29, 20135, the Company's consumer loan originating afliliawes in the US, the UK. and Canada entered
into a revolving. non-recourse. two-year receivables securitization facility (the “Securitization Facility™) pursuant to
various agreements. including but not limited to:

« 4 Loan and Sccurity Agreement among DFC Global Facility Borrower. LLC (the “Borrower™). a wholly owned.
bankruptey remote special purposc entity ("SPE") and an indircct subsidiary of Mid-IHoldings. certain financial
institutions as LLenders. and First Associates [Loan Servicing, LL.C, as collateral and paying agent on behalf of the
Lenders and other Secured Parties (as defined therein) (the “Reccivables Sceuritization Loan Agreement™):

« aRceceivables Purchase Agreement among each ot the loan originators located in the US (~US Originators™). and
DFC US Purchaser. LLC (the US Purchaser™), a bankruptcy remote special purpose entity and a wholly-owned
indircct subsidiary of the Company for US originated loans and Receivables Purchase Agreements between cach
of the loan originators located in the UK (UK Originator™) and Canada (~Canadian Originator™) (coltectively.
with the US Originators, the “Originators™), and DFC Irish Purchaser Designated Activity Company, a
bankruptey remote special purpose, "orphan™ catity owned by an Irish Charitable Trust (the “Irish Purchaser™).
and together with the US Purchascr. (the “Purchasers™), for UK and Canadian originated loans (all such
agreements, collectively, the “RPAs™);

* aRevolving Loan and Sccurity Agreement among each of the Purchasers as borrowers. and the Borrower. as
lender; and
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*  Reccivables Scrvicing Agreements among the US Originators. Dollar Financial Group. Inc. and the US
Purchaser. and between cach of the UK Originator and the Canadian Originator and the Irish Purchaser.

Pursuant 1o the RPAs cach Originator agreed (i) to sell participation and/ar bencelicial interests in all of their
ouwtstanding unsecured consumer loan reccivables as of December 28. 2015 1o their respective Purchasers and (i) to scll
on a daily basis participation and/or beacficial interests in all unsccured consumer loans originated by cach Originator
thercalter until the termination date of the Sceuritization Facility. The gross proceeds trom the initial sale on December
29, 2015 wtaled approximatcly $56 million. Additional advances of $20 million and $24 million were borrowed by the
Borrower during the three months ended March 31. 2016 and June 30. 20146. respectively. Advances under the
Securitization Facility are provided only against Eligible Reccivables. The advance rate under the Securitization Facility
is reset daily at a percentage equal 1o 75% for Eligible Reccivables for which no payment or instaliment is past duc, 40%
for Eligible Receivables for which all or any portion of a scheduled payment remains unpaid for not more than 30 days
and 0% for any other consumer loan reccivables. The proceeds ot the Sceuritization Facility have been used and will
continue 10 be used o repay other owstanding obligations and for other general corporate purposes. The interest ratc on
the funds from the Sceuritization Facility is 15% per annum. The initial commitments of the Lenders was $100 million.
The Securitization Facility may be increased up o $173 mitlion upon satisfaction of certain conditions set forth in the
Receivables Sceritization Loan Ageeement. including the requirement 1 find lenders willing 1o make such additional
comnutments.

The ransaction was structured so that all sales of participation and/or beneficial interests in consumer loan
receivables to the respective Purchasers are on a non-recourse basis. meaning that the Originators do not have liability to
the respective Purchasers for eredit losses on the consumer loan reccivables sold but may still he tiable tor cenain
standard securitization undertakings. In order to linance a portion of the loan receivables acquisition. the Purchasers have
borrowed and will continue o borrow funds from the Borrower. as the lender. and the Borrower. in turn, has borrowed
and will continuce to borrow money from the Lenders. A lender 1o the Sceuritization Facility is also a holder of the 2014
Notes. The Barrower's obligations 1o the Lenders arc secured by, inter alia, all the right. title. and interest of the Borrower
in and 10 the loans made 1o the Purchascrs and all of the rights and interests of the Purchasers to the participation and/or
beneficial interests in the consumer loan receivables sold o them by the Ociginators. Each Originator will retain legal tite
to the receivables. and act as a servicer or sub-servicer on the receivables sold by them.

The Loan and Security Agreement, together with the Revolving Loan and Security Agreement and the RPAs and
receivables servicing agreements. contain various aflirmative and negative covenants that arc customary tor loans of this
type. including burrowing base maintenance. limitations on indebtedness. limitations on sales and dispositions and
provisions o easure Lender control over deposit accounts. The Securitization Facility also includes certain performance-
based or other trigger cvents. the occurrence of which would allow the purchasers to ccase purchasing new receivables
and wind down the Securitization Facility ahcad of the two-ycar anniversary, as well as certain events of detault, the
occurrence of which would allow the lenders to accelerate payment of all amounts outstanding thereunder.

These events include a failure to pay interest and other amounts when due. failure to cure certain borrowing bhasc
deliciencies (which may arise duc to detaults or delinguencics in the consumer loan receivables or otherwise due to such
receivables ceasing 1o he Eligible Receivables). certain defaults on certain other indebtedness. certain judgments. change
of control. and insolvency events. The servicing agreements also contain customary servicer termination events which
atfow the afliliates of the Originators to be replaced as servicers of the consumer loans owned by the Purchasers. First
Associates Loan Servicing is the back-up servicer in the cvent such services are required.

On-Balence Sheer Variable hirerest Entities

The consolidated VIEs. including the Borrower and the Purchascers relating to the Rececivable Securitization Facility
included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet of the Company represent separate entities with which the Company is
involved. The investors in the obligations of consolidated VIEs have legal recourse only 1o the asscts of the VIEs and do
not have such recourse to the Company. exeept for the customary representation and warranty provisions. In addition. the
cash flows from the asscts arc restricted only 1o pay such liabilitics. Thus. our cconomic exposure 10 loss from outstanding
third-parny financing related o consolidated VIEs is significantly tess than the carrying value of the consolidated VIIE
assets. All assets of consolidated VIEs. presented below based upon the legal transfer ot the underlying asscets in order (o
reflect legal ownership, are restricted for the benefit of the beneficial interest holders.
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The Originators are exposed 1o the inherent assumption of the risk of future credit losses to the extent of the
beneficial interests in the Purchasers that are held by them, which represents a form of significant continuing cconomic
interest. The underlying Iegal documents appoint the Originators as the servicer of the beneticial interests in unsecured
consumer loans that arc held by the Purchasers. Servicing functions include. but are not limited to. general collection
activity on current and noncurrent accounts, and loss mitigation eflorts including correspondence and contacting
individual borrowers as legally permited. The Company’s seevicing responsibilities are also considered as continued
involvement in the wransferred unsccured consumer toans.

Cash flows from the unsccured consumer loans transferred 10 the Purchasers represent the sole source for payment of’
distributions on the beneficial interests issued by the Purchasers and for payments to the Originators that perform scrvices
for the Purchasers, the collateral and paying agent. and for interest payments as they become duc.

Nouwithstanding the Company's conclusion that the securitization transaction does not qualify for sale accounting
under US GAAP, and that it maintains a controlling tinancial interest tor consolidated tinancial reporting purposcs. the
Company will maintain scparate accounting records for the purpose of substantiating the purchase date. amount of any
receivables and antount of collections attributable 10 the "legal sale” of the unsccured consumer loans. monitoring
collections thereon. and racking paymems made 1o the collection accounts, and reconciling payments and amounts paid
by the Purchasers to the Originators for (among other things) the Deferred Purchase Price, purchase of new toans
originated and payable to the Originators.

The assets of consolidated variable interest entitics. presented based upon the legal transfer of the underlying assets in
order o reflect legal ownership . that can be used only to settle obligations of the consolidated variable interest entitics
and the labititics of these entities for which creditors (or beneficial interest holders) do not have recourse to our general
credit were as tollows:

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF CONSOLIDATED VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

(in millions)

Assets June 36, 2015 June 30. 2016 |
Cash $ — s 3.1
Consumer loans, Gross — 161.4
Allowance for Consumer loans — (11.2)
Consumer loans. nct — 150.2
Loans in default, net — 17.2
Long term consumer loans. net —_ 41.8
Totatl assets s — |8 2123
Liabilitics

Accrued expenscs and other liabilitics $ — IS 0.8
Sceuritized debt — 100.0
Total Liabilities S — (8 100.8

2014 Notes

In conncction with the Merger. a newly formed wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. DFC Finance Corp. (the
“Issuer”™) issucd $800.0 million of senior secured notes due June 15, 2020 (the "2014 Notes™). The 2014 Notes are
guarantced by the Company and its existing direct or indircct wholly-owned restricted subsidiarics organized in the US.
Canada and the UK (other than the Issucr). other than immatcrial subsidiarics and certain other subsidiaries. The 2014
Notes bear interest at a rawe of 10.50% per year. payable on June 15 and December 15 of cach year. commencing on
December 13. 2014, Upon the occurrence of certain change-of-control transactions. the Issuer will be required to make an
ofler to repurchase the 2014 Notes at 101% ot the principal amount. plus any accrued and unpaid interest to. but
excluding. the repurchase date. The Issuer may redeem some or all of the 2014 Notes at any time on or afier Junc 15.
2017 at a redemption price cqual 10 100.0% of the principal amount of the Scenior Secured Notes redeemed plus any
accrued and unpaid interest. il'any. plus a "make-whole™ premivnt. On and atter June 13, 2017, the Issuer will have the
right to redeem the 2014 Notes. in whole at any time or in part from time to time (i) at a redemption price of 105.25% of’
the principal amount thereof i the redemption occurs on or after June 13, 2017 but prior 1o June 15.2018: (i ata
redemption price of 102.625% of the principal amount thereot’ i the redemption occurs on or after June 13, 2018 but prior
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w June 15, 2019: and (iii) at a redemption price of 100.0% ot the principal amount thereo! if the redemption occurs on or
after June 13, 2019.

In addition. until Junc 15. 2017, the [ssuer may. at its option, upon notice as described in the 2014 Notes. on onc or
morc occasions redeem up o 40% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2014 Notes issucd under the 2014 Notes
Indenture at a redemption price equal 10 110.500% of the aggregate principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid
intcrest thereon. if any, 1o (but excluding) the applicable Redemption Date. subject to the right of Holders of 2014 Notes
of record on the relevant record date to receive interest due on the relevant interest payment date. with the net cash
proceeds ol one or more equity otterings to the extent such net cash proceeds are received by or contributed to Mid-
Holdings; provided that (a) at least 60% of the 2014 Notes issucd under the Indenture (including any Additional Notes)
remain outstanding immediately atier the occurrence of each such redemption and (b) cach such redemption occurs within
90 days of the date of closing of cach such equity offering.

ABL Credit Fucility

On June 13. 2014 (the “Merger Closing Date™). the Company entered into a new senior sccured assct-based
revolving credit facility (as amended. the “ABL Credit Facility™) with Jefleries Finance LLC. as administrative agent. and
a syndicate of lenders. The ARL. Credit Facility provides.for a tive-year $125.0 million revolving credit faeility: with
potential 1o further increase the maximum commitment amount to up to $230.0 million, subject wo the conditions sct forth
in the credit agreement, including the requirement 1o find lenders willing to make such additional commitments. There is a
sublimit of $80.0 million for the issuance of leuers of credit under the ABL Credit Facility. Availability under the ABL
Credint Facility is based on a borrowing base comprised of cash and cligible consumer receivables of the barrowers and
guaranors.

Borrowings under the ABL Credit Facility may be denominated in US dollars. British pounds. curos or Canadian
dollars (and other currencics as may be approved by the lenders). as sclected by the borrower. As of June 30. 2016.
interest on borrowings under the ABL Credit Facility accrued at a rate equal 1o London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR™)
(or in the case of Canadian dollar loans. Canadian Dollar Offered Rate ("CDOR™)) for the relevant currency ol borrowing.
plus a margin of 400 basis points. or if sclected by the barrower. the applicable alternate base rate ("ABR™) (in the case of
borrowings denominaied in US dollars) or the Canadian prime rate (for loans denominated in Canadian dollars) tor such
currency of borrowing. plus a margin of 300 basis points.

The ABL Credit Facility alfows for borrowings by the Issucr. NMM. DFUK and DF Eurozonce (and any additional
borrowers added to the ABL Credit Facility afier the Merger Closing Date. subject to the conditions thereto). Borrowings
are guaranteed by Mid-Holdings. Holdings and by cach existing direct or indirect wholly-owned restricted subsidiary of
Mid-Holdings organized in the US. Canada. the Republic ot lreland and the UK (other than the [ssuer), other than
immatcrial subsidiarics and certain other subsidiarics. The obligations of the borrowers and guarantors under the ABL
Credit Facility are sccured by substantially all the assets of such borrowers and guarantors, with certain exceptions. with
the collateral agent under the ABL Credit Facility. for the benetit of the lenders under the ABL Credit Facility and certain
other secured partics having a first priority perfected lien on collateral consisting of current assets, including cash and
consunmer receivables. and the 2014 Notes Trustee. tor the benefit of the holders of the 2014 Notes having a fiest priority
perfected lien onthe fixed assets and other coltateral of the borrowers and guarantors.

The credit agreement governing the ABL Credit Facility contains customary covenants. representations and
warrantics and cvents of default. including covenants which limit our ability 1o engage in cenain transactions or activitics.
representations and warrantics which we niust be able to make in order 10 obtain borrowings under the facility, and
financial mainicnance covenants and cvents of default which could result in the facility being terminated and any
outstanding debt becoming due prior o its scheduled maturity. The financial maintenance covenants under the ABL Credit
Facility are a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio test (which will be tested only if availability is less than 13% of the
commitments as of the last day of any fiscal quarter) and a maximum total net leverage ratio test. The Company was in
compliance with all such covenants as of June 30. 2016. Based on the Company's forecasted carnings and cash flows
(which include proceeds of debt or ¢quity issuances from its parent companics or other third partics). the Company
expects 1o be in compliance with such covenants for the succeeding twelve months. The Company’'s ability to continue to
mect those covenants will depend argely on its fiscal year 2017 performance (including proceeds of debt or equity
issuances from its parcnt companies or other third partics). 1f the Company was to breach the covenants under the senior
sccured credit agreement. the lenders would be entitled to declare all amounts borrowed under it immediately duc and
payable. This acceleration o debt. if not paid by the Company. would trigger defaults under. and possibly causc the
aceeleration of obligations under the senior secured notes issued or guaranteed by the Company (described above).
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STERLING MID-HOLDINGS, LTD.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continucd)

discontinuance ol hedge accounting tor the Company’s cross currency interest rate swaps, the non-cash interest expensc
associated with its Convertible Notes and the amortization of various deferred issuance costs.

As of Junc 30. 2016. long-term debt. maturing in cach of the years subscquent to Junce 30. 2016. is as follows (in

millions):
June 30.
Fiscal vears ended Junc 30. 2016
2018 105.5
2019 120.8
2020 808.8
2021 1.7
Total $ 1,036.8
. Fair Value Measurements

FASD ASC 820 « Fuir Yulue Measurement esaablishies a faly value hicearehy that distinguishes beiween observable and
unobservable market participant assumptions. Level |inputs utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability 1o access. Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilitics in active markets and inputs other than quoted prices that are observable tor the asset or Liability. Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs for the asset or liability and include situations where there is fittle, it any. market activity for the asset or
liability, In certain cases. the inputs used to measure fair vaiue may fall into different levels of the fair value hicrarchy. In such
cases. the level in the fair value hicrarchy is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in
its entirety. The Company’s asscssment of the significance of a particular input to the Fair value in its entirety requires judgment
and considers factars specific 1o the asset or liability.

Periodicaily. the Company uses forcign currency options and cross currency interest rate Swaps 1o manage its interest rate
and foreign currency risk and a gold collar o manage its exposure to variability in gold prices. The valuation of these
instruments is determined using widely accepted valuation echniques including discounted cash tlow analysis on the expected
cash flows of cach derivative. This analysis refleets the contractual terms of the derivatives, including the period to maturity
and uses obscrvable market-based inputs. including interest rate curves. foreign exchange rates, gold forward curves and
implied volatilitics. The Company incorporates credit valuation adjustments to reflect both its own nonperformance risk and the
respective counterparty’s nonperformance risk in the fair valuc measurcments. In adjusting the fair value of its derivative
contracts for the eflect ol nonpertormance risk. the Company has considered the impact of netting and any applicable credit
cnhancements. such as collateral postings. thresholds. mutual puts. and guarantees. Although the Company has determined tha
the majority of the inputs used to value its derivatives tatl within Level 2 of the fair value hicrarchy. the credit valuation
adjustments associated with its derivatives utilize Level 3 inputs. such as estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate the
likclihood of delault by itsclf and its counterpartics. As of Junc 30, 2014, the Company has assessed the significance of the
impact of the credit valuation adjustments on the overall valuation ol its derivative positions and has determined that the eredit
valuation adjustments are not signiticant 1o the overall valuation of its derivatives. As a result, the Company has determined that
its derivative valuations in their entirety are classified in Level 2 of the fair value hicrarchy. As disclosed in Note 12.
“Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitics” the Company terminated the cross-currency swaps wiich was held by UK
subsidiary. As of June 30, 2013, there were no Derivative financial instruments required to be measured at fair value.

The tables below presents the Company s assets and liabilitics measured at tair valuc on a recurring basis as of June 30,
2016, aggrepated by the level in the fair valuc hicrarchy within which those measurements fall.

Assets and Liabilities Mcasured at Fair Valuc on o Recurring Basis at June 30, 2016
(in millions)

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant
for kdentical Assets Other Significant
Balance at and Liabilitics Obscrvable Unohservable Balance al
June 30, 2018 (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)  June 30, 2016
Liabilities
Derivative financial instrumems — — § 0.9 — § 0.9



STERLING MID-HOLDINGS, LTD.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continuced)

1. Fair Valuce Mcasurements (continued)

The tables below presents the Company's assets and liabilitics measured at fair valuc on a non-recurring basis as of June
30, 20135, aggregated by the tevel inthe fair value hierarchy within which those measurements tall.

Assets and Liabilitics Mcasured at Fair Value on a Non-Recurring Basis at June 30, 2015
(in millions)

Quoted Prices in

. Active Markets Significant
Bulance at for ldentical Assels Other Significant Total
June 30, and Liabitities Obhservable Unobservable Gains
2015 (Level 1) Inputs (L.cvel 2) Inputs (Level 3) (Losses)
DFS trade name and other intangibles  § — 5 — 3 — S — $ (10.2) "
DFS goodwitl — — — — SRS
Rest of World goodwill — —_ — 65.6 (16.2)?

(1) Inaccordance with ASC 360-10. the DFS trade name and other intangible assct was written down to its fair value of
$0.0 mitlion. resulting in an impairment charge of $10.2 million. which is included in carings for the fiscat year ended
June 30, 2015. Sce Noate 4 for a description of the valuation techniques and the signiticant unobservable inputs used to
determine fair value.

(2) Inaccordance with ASC-350-20. goodwill with a carrying amount of $3.8 million and $16.2 million tor DFS and Rest
of Warld reporting units, respectively, were written down to their implied fair value of $0.0 million, $63.6 million,
respectively. resulting in impairment charges of $3.8 mitlion and $16.2 million, respectively. which are included in
carnings for the fiscal vear ended June 30. 2013, Sce Note 4 for a description of the valuation techniques and the
significant unobservable inputs used to determine fair value.

There were no changes o assets and labilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis during the year caded June
30.2016.

The wable below presents the Company’s financial assets and liabilitics that arc not measured at fair value in the
consolidated balance sheets as of June 30. 20135 and June 30. 2016:

Financial Assets and Liabilities Not Measured at Fair Value at June 30, 2015 and at Junce 30, 2016
(in millions)
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STERLING MID-HOLDINGS, LTD.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continucd)

1. Fair Value Mcasurements (continued)
' Estiinated Fulir Valee
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets Sigaificant
for Identical Assets Other Significant Balance at
Carrying Value and Linbilities Obscrvable Unobservable June 30,
at June 30, 2018 (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3) 2015
Financial assets:
Cash and cash cquivalents $ 1380 S 1380 S — § — § 138.0
Consumer loans, nct 132.4 —_ — 132.4 132.4
Pawn loans, nct 117.0 — — 117.0 117.0
Loans in default 21.6 — — 21.6 _ 216
Total financial assets $ 409.0 § 138.0 § — S 2710 S 409.0
Financial liabilities:
ABL credit facility $ 83.0 S — 5 83.0 — S 83.0
10.50% Senior Secured Notes 800.0 — 604.5 604.5
Scandinavian credit facilitics 44.7 44.7 44.7
Other debt 9.7 9.7 9.7
Total financial liabilitics S 9374 § — § 7419 S — S 741.9

Estimated Fair Value

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant
for ldentical Assets Other Significant
Carrying Value and Liabilitics Observable Unahservable
at June 30, 2016 (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) luputs (L.evel 3) June 30, 2016
Financial assets:
Cash and cash cquivalents S 148.1 S 1481 § — S — S 148.1
Consumer loans, net ’ 206.9 — — 206.9 206.9
Pawn loans. net 97.8 — — 97.8 97.8
Loans in default 279 — — 279 279
Long term consumer loans 41.8 — 8 — 41.8 41.8
Toal financial asscts $ 5225 S 148.1 § — § 3744 § 522.5
Financial liabilitics:
ABL credit facility $ 1208 S — S 120.8 — S 120.8
10.30% Senior Sccured Noies 800.0 —_ 487.0 — 487.0
Scandinavian credit facilitics 45.1 — 45.1 — 45.1
Receivables Sceuritization tacility 100.0 — 100.0 — 100.0
Note Payable-Lone Star affiliate 26.0 — 26.0 - 26.0
Other debt 8.2 — 8.2 — 8.2
Toial financial liabilitics S 1,100.1  § — S 787.1 §$ — S 787.1

Cash cquivalents are defined as short-term. highly liquid investments both readily convertible to known amount of cash
and 50 near maturity that there is insignificant risk of changes in values beeause of changes in interest rates.

Consumer loans arc carricd on the consolidated balance sheet net of the allowance for estimated loan losses. which is
calcutated by applying historical loss rates combined with current collection patterns and current cconomic trends (o the gross
consumer loan balance. The unobscrvable inputs used ta calculate the carrving value ol consumer loans include historical loss
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STERLING MID-HOLDINGS, LTD.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continuced)

1. Fair Value Mcasurements (continued)

rates and the current collection patterns and current cconomic trends. Consumer loans generally have terms ranging from 1 1o
43 days and for longer term installment loans up to 3 years. The carrving value of consumer loans approximates the fair vafue.

Pawn loans are short-term in nature and are sccured by the customer’s personal property (“pledge”™). Pawn lawns are
secured by the customer’s pledged item. which is generatly 50% 10 80% of the appraised fair value of the pledged item. thus
reducing the Company’'s exposure 1 losses on defaulied pawn loans. The Company’s historical redemption rate on pawn loans
is in excess of 80%. which means that for more than 80% ol its pawn loans, the customer pays back the doliars borrowed. plus
interest and fees. and the Company returns the pledged item o the customer. In the instance where the customer defaults on a
pawn loan (fails to redeem). the pledged item is cither sold at auction or sold 1o a third party in the Company’s retail stores
within several weeks of the customer default. Generally, excess amounts received over and above the Company's recorded asset
and auction-related administrative fees ave returned o the customer. The unobservable inputs used to calculate the carryving
value of loans in default include historical redemption rates and the current redemption patterns and current cconomic trends.
such as gold prices. The carrving value of pawn loans approximatcs the fair value,

Loans in deiault consist of short-icrm consumer loans originated by the Company which are in default status. An
allowance for the delaulied loans receivable is established and is included in the loan toss provision in the period that the loan is
placed in default staws. The reserve is reviewed monthly and any change to the loan toss allowance as a result of historical loan
pertformance. current and expected collection patterns and current cconomic trends is included with the Company’s foan loss
provision. If the loans remain in a defaulted staws for an extended period of time, wypically 90 to 180 days, an allowance for the
entire amount of the loan is recorded and the receivable is ultimately charged off. The unobservable inputs used to calculate the
carrving value of foans in default includc historical loss rates and the current collection patierns and current economic trends.
The carrving valuc of loans in default approximares the fair value.

The outstanding borrowings under the Company’s ABL credit facility and Scandinavian credit facilities are variable
interest debt instruments and their carrying value approximates {air value.

The Company reviews wrading activity and pricing for the corporate bond as of the measurement date and determines if’
pricing data of sufficient frequency and volume in an active market exists in order 10 support Level | classification of the tair
value of the 10.3% Scnior notes. When sufTicient quoted pricing for the bond is not available, the Company obtains market
pricing and other observable market inputs tor instruments of similar characteristics from a number of' industry standard data
providers to determine the fair value of the 10.3% Senior notes at period end.

12. Derivative lnstruments and Hedging Activitics
Risk Management Objective of Using Derivatives

The Company is exposed to risks arising from both its business operations and economic conditions. The Company
principally manages its exposures 0 a wide varicty of business and opcerational risks through management of its core business
activitics. The Company manages cconomic risks. including interest rate. liquidity. and credit risk primarily by managing the
amount, sources, and duration of its debt funding and by the use of derivative tinancial instruments. The primary risks managed
by using derivative instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency exchange risk and commaodity price risk. Specifically, the
Company enters into derivative financial instruments to manage exposures that arise from business activities that result in the
receipt or payment of future known and uncertain cash amounts, the value of which is determined by interest rates, forcign
exchange rates or commodity prices.

The Company’'s operations in Canada and LZurope expose the Company to fluctuations in forcign exchange rates. The
Company’s goal is to reduce its exposure 10 such foreign exchange risks on its foreign currency cash Nows and fair value
fluctuations on recognized forcign currency denaminated asscts. habilitics and unrecognized tirm commiuments 1o acceptable
levels primarily through the usc of forcign exchange-relaed derivative financial instruments. From time to time, the Company
enters into derivative linancial instruments to protect the value or £ix the amount of certain obligations in terms ot its functional
curreney, the US doliar.

Cash Flow Hedges of Foreign Exchange Risk

Operations in Europe and Canada have exposed the Company 10 changes in toreign exchange rates. From time o time,
the Company’s UK and Canadian subsidiaries purchase investment securities denominated in a currency other than their
functional currency. The subsidiaries from time to ime hedge the retated fureign exchange risk typically with the use of out of
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STERLING MID-HOLDINGS, LTD.
(SUCCESSOR TO DFC GLOBAL CORP)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continucd)

12 Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (continued)

the money put options because they cost less than completely averting risk using at the money put options. and the maximum
loss is limited to the purchase price of the contracts.

The cffective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and that qualify as cash flow hedges of
forcign exchange risk is recorded in other comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified into carnings in the period that
the hedged forecasted transaction aflects carnings. The ineflective portion of the change in fair value of the derivative. as well
as amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge cilectiveness. is recognized dircctly in earnings.

Cash Flow Hedges of Multiple Risks

On April 20, 2012, the Company’s UK subsidiary entered into swap agreements o hedge currency exchange risk related 1o
intcrcompany transactions stemming from the convertible notes issued in April 2012. The swaps were 1o mature on April 12,
2017. Between December 26. 2014 and December 29. 2014, the Company terminated the cross-currency swaps which its UK
subsidiary had entered into-in April 2012, The termination of the swaps was cficcidd pursuant 1o ncgotiated transactions with
the respective counter-partics to such swaps. The Company reccived net proceeds in the aggregate amount of $0.4 million as a
result of the terminations and recorded a gain of $16.1 million in its consolidated statement of operations for the year ¢nded
June 30, 2015, in accordance with FASB ASC 8135 - Derivatives and Hedging. As of Junc 30. 2015, there were no derivative
linancial instruments required to be measured at {air valuc.

Cross Currency Swap Agreements

We use foreign curreney options and cross currency intercst rale swaps o manage our interest rate and forcign currency
risk and a gold collar to manage our exposure to variability in gold prices. The valuation of these instruments is determined
using widely accepted valuation wechniques including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of cach
derivative. This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the derivatives. including the period o maturity and uscs observable
market-based inputs, including interest rate curves, foreign exchange rates, gold torward curves and implied volatilities. We
incorporate credit valuation adjustments to reflect both its own nonperformance risk and the respective counterparty’s
nonperformance risk in the fair value measurements. In adjusting the fair value of its derivative contracts for the eflfect of
nonpertormance risk. we have considered the impact of netting and any applicable credit enhancements. such as collateral
postings. thresholds. mutual puis. and guaraniees. Although we have determined that the majority of the inpwis used o value
our derivatives fall within Level 2 of the fair value hicrarchy. the credit valuation adjusiments associated with our derivatives
utilize Level 3 inputs, such as estimates of current credit spreads 1o evaluate the likelihood of detault by iiselt and our
counterparties. As of June 30. 2016. we have assessed the significance of the impact of the credit valuation adjustments on the
overall valuation of our derivative positions and have determined that the credit valuation adjustments are not significant to the
overall valuation of our derivatives. As a result, we have determined thai our derivative valuations in their entirety are classificd
in Levet 2 of the fair value hicrarchy.

On September 16, 2013, the Company entered into two swap agreements with a Lone Star affiliace, LSF8 HedgeCo. L.,
to hedge the US doliar exposure associated with interest obligation on a $370.0 million intercompany note between the
Company’s Canadian operating subsidiary. NMM. and a US subsidiary. DFC Finance. The US dollars received by DFC Finance
will be used to support US denominated interest obligations on the Company’s external $800.0 miltion 10.30% senior sccured
notes duc 2020. The swaps mature on June 13. 2018.

These intercompany cross-currency swaps were designated as a cash flow hedge of interest payments on its US dollar
denominated debt due by its Canadian operating subsidiary that is subject 1w tluctuation in toreign exchange rates.

As of June 30. 2016. the Company had the following outstanding derivatives:

Average
Average Receive
Number of Pay Fived Fived Strike
Foreign Currency Derivatives Instruments Pay Notional Reccive Notional Strike Rate Rate
CAD-USD Cross Currency Swaps 2 CAD 751,602,000 USD 570.000.000  10.604% 10.50%

Non-designated Hedges of Commodity Risk
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12. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (continued)

In the normal course of business. the Company maimains inventories ot gold at its pawn and retail shops. From time to
time. the Company enters into derivative financial instruments to manage the price risk associated with forecasted gold
inventory levels, Derivatives not designated as hedges are not speculative and are used 10 manage the Company'’s exposure 10
commadity price risk but do not meet the strict hedge accounting requirements ol ASC 815 - Derivatives and Hedging.
Changes in the fair vatlue of derivatives not designated in hedging relationships are recorded direetly in carnings.

As of June 30. 2016. the Company’s subsidiary in the UK had no outstanding commodity derivatives:

The wables below present the tair values of the Company s derivative financial instruments on the consolidated balance
sheets as of June 30, 2013 and Junc 30, 2016 (in millions).

Tahular Disclosure of Fair Values of Derivative Instruments

. Derivatives Liability Derivatives
Successor As of June 30, 2015 As of June 30, 2016
Balance Sheet Fair Balance Sheet Falr
location Value Location Vajue
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Cross Currency Swaps Derivatives — Derivatives  § 0.9
Commodity Options Derivatives  $ — Derivatives  $ —

Credit-risk-related Contingent Features

The Company has agreements with cach of its derivative counter-partics that contain a provision where if the Company
defaulis on any of its indebtedness. including default where repayment of the indebiedness has not been accelerated by the
lender. then the Company could also be declared in default on its derivative obligations.

During the year ended June 30. 2016. the Company did not have any realized gains or losses from derivatives. During the
year ended June 30. 2015. the Company recorded a gain of $16.1 million related to its cross-currency swaps. which is included
in Gain on derivatives not designated as hedges in the consolidated statement of operations.

13. Income Taxes

The Company’s US and foreign income before income taxes tor the period irom July 1.2013 o June 13,2014 (the
Predecessor period). the period from June 14, 2014 10 Junc 30. 2014 (Successor period) and the year ended June 30. 2013 and
June 30. 2016 (collcetively the Successor periods) as indicated are set torth below (in millions). Adjustments have been made
in respect to the period trom June (4. 2014 1o Junc 30. 2014 amoumts reported for income tax as a resulbt of tinalizing purchase
accounting during the one year measurement period.  The tax disclosures below for the Successor period ending June 30. 2014
reflect the impact of these adjustments. See Note 3 for additional information.

Predecessor Successor
July 1, 2013 -
June 13, June 14,2014 -
2014 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016
United States $ (49.6) $ 0.2) § 39.3) % (17.1)
Forcign (158.7) (36.1) 1271.7) (225.1)
Total S (208.3) $ (36.3) § 311.0) $ (242.2)

The details ol the Company’s income tax provision or the period from July 1. 2013 to Junc 13. 2014 (the Predecessor
period). the period from June F4, 2014 10 June 30. 2014 (Successor period) and the year ended June 30, 2013 and Junce 30.
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13. Income Taxes (continued)

2016 (collectively the Successor periods) as indicated are set {orth below (in millions).:

Predecessor Successor
July 1, 2013 - June 14, 2014 - Year ended Year ended
June 13, 2014 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016
Current: U.S. Federal $ — § — .S — 3 0.3
Forcign 3.5 — 4.0 10.2
Statc 0.1 — — —
Towl $ 3.6 S — S 40 § 10.5
Deferred: U.S. Federal and State $ 44 S 215§ 2.5) % .56 -
’ Forcign 0.2 — 4.5 (7.2)
Total ) 46 S 215§ 20 § (1.6)
Total income tax provision $ 82 § 215§ 60 S 89

The June 30, 2014 income tax provision amount of $21.3 million reflects a reduction of $15.8 million in U.S. Federat
and State tax from the amount originally reported due to changes as a result of finalizing purchase accounting during the one
vear measurement period.

Below is the reconciliation ol income tax expense trom the US federal statwory rate w the Company’s eftective tax rate
for the period July 1. 2013 - June 13, 2014 (the Predecessor period). For the Successor period Junc 14, 2014 - Junc 30. 2014,
the year ended June 30. 20135 and the year ended June 30. 2016 the parent company Sterling Mid Holdings Lid. is incorporated
in Jersey Channel Islands where the statutory rate is zero (in millions):

Predecessor Successor
June 14,
July 1, 2013 - 2014 - Year ended Year ended
June £}, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2014 2014 2018 2016
Tax provision (bencfit) at fedceral statutory rate $ (72.9) $ — — $ —_—
Add(deduct)

State tax provision 0.9 —_ — —
Convertible debt discount 2.8 — —_ —_
Effect of foreign operations 6.9 (10.2) (57.5) (41.9)
Change in uncertain tax position 3.1 120.0 3.0 23
Other 3.4 — —_ —
Non-deductible Goodwill impairment 3.1 — —_ —
Valuation allowance 12.9 (88.3) 579 48.5
Tax provision at effective tax rate S 82 § 215 S 60 § 8.9
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13. Income Taxes (continuced)

The June 30. 2014 1ax provision amount of $21.5 million reflcets a reduction of $15.8 million from the amount
previously reported due to an S11.2 million additional benetit for valuation allowance and a $4.6 million decrease in uncertain
ax position as a result of finalizing purchase accounting during the one year measurement period.

The details of the Company’s deferred tax asscis and liabilities as of June 30. 20135 and 2016 arc sct forth below (in
millions):

Junce 30. 2015 June 30, 2016
Detereed tax asscts
Allowance tor loan losscs $ 124§ 1.0
Depreciation and amortization : 6.7 12.8
Accrued compensation 7.0 10.2
Other accrucd expenscs 7.8 8.8
Net operating loss and capital loss carryforwards 70.9 101.6
Forcign tax credit carry forwards 6.7 14.0
Amortization and other temporary difterences 10.7 3.0
Accrued litigation 4.9 4.8
Acquisition and restructuring charges 03 —
Other ' 2.3 7.3
Total deterred tax assets 129.7 173.7
Valuation Atlowance (122.7) (169.3)
Net deferred tax asset 7.0 4.2

The Company provides a tull valuation allowance against losses in certain jurisdictions in which itoperates. Management
will continue 1o evaluie the Company's ability to benetit from its net deferved 1ax assets and identify whether any significant
changes in circumstances or assumptions occur that could materially aftect its ability 1o benefit from its deferred tax assels.
Management expects o release the valuation allowance when suflicient positive evidence exists. including. but not limited o,
cumulative carnings in successive recent periods 1o overcome the negative evidence the Company has encountered from cumulative
losses during the current and prior fiscal years,

AtJune 30. 2015 and 2016. the Company provided a valuation allowance against a portion of'its deterred 1ax assets
where realization is not assured in the amount of $122.7 mitlion and $169.5 million respectively. Of the $46.8 million increase.
the amount charged to 1ax expense was $48.5 million with $1.7 million charged o currency wranslation adjustment.

The federal, state and foreign net operating loss carry forwards available 10 of¥set future taxable income at June 30. 2016
were $179.3 million, $304.5 million and $364.8 million. respectively compared to $158.8 million, $447.2 million and $178.1
million respectively at June 30. 2013, The federal net operating loss carry forwards will begin o expire in 2023, if not utilized.
The state net operating loss carryforwards are comprised mostly of Penasylvania and California and may be subject 10
wtilization limitations. These NOLs begin to expire at various times il not utitized. The forcign net operating loss carry torwards
will begin to expire in 2018 and in some countrics are indefinite. The Company has forcign tax credit carrvforwards of
approximately $60.8 million as of June 30. 2016. which will begin (o expire in 2017 if not utilized.

. The Company is a multinational organization with operations in various foreign countries. As of June 30. 2016. the
Company has not provided deferred taxes on the excess of the amount recorded for financial reporting purposes over the tax
basis of investment in subsidiaries. including $80.8 million of undistributed carnings of certain subsidiarics. as these amaounts
are intended to be indefinitely reinvested. While management presently docs not intend o do so upon repatriation of the
undistributed carnings or a sale or liquidation of the subsidiary, the amount of such temporary ditflerence may be subject 1o both
income and withholding taxes payable to various 1axing jurisdictions. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred
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13. Income Taxes (continued)

income tax liability and withholding wax on this temporary difterence is not practicable at this time becausce such liability is
dependent upon circumstances existing if and when remittance occurs.

On November 20. 20135, the FASB issucd ASU No. 20135-17. "Balance Sheet Classilication of Deferred Taxes" ("ASU
2015-177). to simplify the presentation of deferred income taxes. ASU 20135-17 requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities be
classificd as non-current in a classilicd statement of tinancial position. Under prior guidance. an entity was required 1o separaie
deferred income 1ax assets and liabilitics into current and non-current amounts. The current requirement that deferred tax asscts
and liabilities of a tax-paying component of an entity be offsct and presented as a single amount is not atlected. For non-public
entitics. the new guidance is effective for annual periods beginning afier December 15,2017, and interim periods within annual
periods beginning after December 13, 2018, with carly adoption permiuned. We adopied the new guidance on a prospective basis
for the tiscal year ended June 30, 2016. Financial statements for prior periods were not restrospecively adjusted. There was no
impact on our results of operations as a resnlt of the adeptien of ASU 201517,

In July 2013. the Financial Accounting Standards Board (*FASB™) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU™) No.
2013-11 ("ASU 2013-117) “Income Taxes (Topic 740): Presenation ot an Unrccognized Tax Benetit When a Net Operating
Loss Carryforward. a Similar Tax Loss. or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists™. ASU 2013-11 states that an unrecognized tax
benefit. or a portion of an unrecognized tax benefit, should be presented in the financial statements as a reduction to a deferred
Lax assct tor a net operating loss ("NOL™) carryforward. a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carrytorward. The exception to this
weatment is as follows: to the extent an NOL carryforward, a similar tax loss. or a ax credit carryforward is not available at the
reporting date or if the entity is not required to use and doces not intend to use the deferred 1ax asset. then the unrecognized tax
benetit should be presented in the financial statements as a liability and should not be combined with deferred tax asseis. The
Company adopted this accounting standard cflective for the year beginning July 1, 2014 and applied the standard prospectively
1o unrccognized tax benefits that existed as of the effective date. The Company has reported $108.3 miltion of unrecognized
tax benefits as a reduction o non-current deferred tax assets for net operating loss and forcign tax credit carryforwards as of
June 30. 2013 and Junc 30. 2016.

A reconciliation of the gross unrecognized ax benefits for the Predecessor period ended June 13, 2014 and the Successor
periods ended June 30. 2014, June 30, 20135 and Junc 30. 2016 as indicated. follows (in millions):

Predecessor Successor
July 1,2013 'g:,‘f::‘ U‘;jrs Year ended
- June 13, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2014 2014 2018 2016

Beginning balance $ 180 § 200 $ 1506 S 1516
Currency translation (0.5) (0.1) 2.8) (2.0)
Increases — current year positions 23 — 3.8 3.1
Increases — prior year positions 0.2 t19.1 — —
Scitlements — — — (1.0)
Increases — related to measurement period adjustments — 11.6 — —
Statute expired — — —_ (1.0)
Ending balance $ 200 $ 1506 S 1516 S 1507

The June 30. 2014, gross unrecognized tax benelit of $130.6 mitlion reflects an increase of $11.6 million from the amount
previously reported duc to an increase in unrccognized tax benefits recorded as a result of finalizing purchase accounting during
the one year measurement period.

AtJune 30, 2015 and 2016. the Company had $160.2 million and $139.6 million, respectively, of liabilities for uncenain
tax positions, including interest and penalty. related to transter pricing matters and certain restructuring transactions. 1M recognized
in the future, $42.4 million of these currently unrecognized income tax benefits would impact the income tax provision.
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The Company recognizes interest and penaltics refated 1o unceriain tax positions in income tax expensc. As of Junc 30.
2016. the Company had approximately $3.3 million and $3.6 million of accrued interest and penalties. respectively. refated to
uncertain ax position which represents a $0.3 mitlion increasc from the prior ycar amount of $8.6 million,

The increase in the Successor period ended June 30, 2014 was $119.9 million resulting (rom restructuring transactions
undertaken o align the legal struciure of the Company with its new owner, Sterling Mid-Holdings Lid.. a Jersey Channel Islands
company. These restructuring transactions included the taxable sale ot'shares ot wholly owned subsidiarics from the U K. 1w Canada
and the U.K.. a non-taxable Canadian amalgamation. and the taxable purchase by Sterling Mid-Holdings Lid. of direct interests
in indircet U.K. subsidiaries of DFC Global Corp

Uncertain tax positions have been classified as non-current income tax labilities or as a reduction o delerred
1ax assets pursuant to ASU 2013-11 unless they are expected to be paid within one year as of June 30. 2016. The Company
dues not anticipate significant increases or decreases in the amount ol unrecognized ax benetits reported w oceur in the next 12
maonths.

Tax years ending June 30. 2013 through 2016 remain open to examination by the Internal Revenue Service in the
United States. tax years ending June 30. 2014 through 2016 in the United Kingdom by HMRC, tax years ending June 30. 2006
through 2016 tor Canada by the Canadian Revenue Authority ("“CRA™), and 1ax ycars ending 2010 through 2016 in various
other jurisdictions. In some US Federal. state and forcign jurisdictions. 1ax authoritics have a period longer than the normal
statwtory periad to conduct an examination in cascs where net operating losses or credit carryforwards exist. The CRA has
assessed tax for fiscal years ending June 30. 2006 through 2013, related to intercompany transfer pricing. We have not agreed
with these proposed assessments and are contesting them through administrative processes available to us. To the extent we
have wansfer pricing adjusiments sustained in Canada. it is our intent to seck corollary adjustments with the appropriaie
competent authority in the United States and the United Kingdom.

14, Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

In accordance with ASU 2013-2- Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income the reclassification adjustiments from accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) 1o netinconie were as follows (in millions):

Year Ended June 30, 2015 Year Ended June 30, 2016
Foreign currency Forelgn currency
translation transfation

Derivatives adjustment Derivatives adjustment
Balance at beginning of period $ — 16.6 — (138.1)
Other comprehensive income before . _
reclassitications, net $ — (154.7) (0.6) 310
Amounts reclassiticd from accumulated
other comprehensive income, net $ — — —_ —
Balance at end of period $ — (138.1) (0.6) (107.1)
15, Restructuring Activities

During the year ended June 30. 20135, the Company incurred $48.6 million for stere closures and other exit costs of under-
performing stores located primarily in the UK. Furope and North America. In addition $16.4 million was expensed for
cmployce related costs tor personnel atlected by the restructuring.

The store closing costs arc included in loss on store closings on the consolidated statement of operations. The Company
expeets the majority of this amount will be paid within one year.
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The following table summarizes activity for liabilities related w the Company's restructuring aclivitics during the yeu
ended June 30. 2015 {in millions):

Store
closures/exit  Employee

costs related costs Total
Balance at Junc 30, 2014 $ 36§ 03 % 3.9
lixpensed during the year ended Junce 30. 2015 S 569 § 227 § 79.6
Payments $ (11.3) $ (6.4)S (17.7)
Forcign cureency transtation adjustiment (0.6) (0.2) (0.8)
Towal . M) 486 § 164 § 65.0

As of Junc30. 2016, the Company’s liability for store closures and employee related costs was $24.3 million and $0.2
million. respectively, Total restructuring expense of $79,6 million and $26.4 mitlion tor the year ended June 30. 2015 und 2016
respectively are included in Other Expenses. net.

The following table summarizes activity tor liabilities related o the Company's restructuring activitics during the year
ended June 30, 2016 (in millions):

Store closures/ Employee-
exit costs related costs Total
Balance at Junc 30, 2015 S 486 $§ 16.4 65.0
Expensed during the vear ended June 30, 2016 21.0 5.4 264
Payments (40.5) (21.5) (62.0)
Foreign currency translation adjustment (4.6) 0.1) 4.7
Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 245 8 0.2 24.7

The following table summarizes activity for liabilities related to asset retirement obligations for the year ended June 30,
2015 (in millions):

Foreign
Balance at Settlement Currency Balance ot
Beginning of on store Aceretion Translation Fad of
Period closures Expense Adjustments Period
Asset retirement obligations: S 7.7 (4.8) (0.4) (0.6) $ 1.9

Asset retirement obligations for the year ended June 30, 2016 were as follows (in millions):

Foreign

Balance at Settlement Currency Balance at
Beginning of on store Accretion Translation End of
Period closures Expense Adjustments Period
Assct retirement obligations: $ 1.9 (0.4) 0.2 0.2) § 1.5

16. Commitments

The Company has various noncancelable feascs for office and retail space and cerain equipment with terms primarily
ranging from one to five vears. most of which contain standard optional renewal clauses. Total rent expense under operating
lcascs amounted to $66.9 million. $3.5 miltion. $64.8 million and $45.0 for the Predecessor period July {2013 o Junc 13.
2014 and the Successar period from June 14, 2014 10 Junc 30. 2014, Junc 30. 2015 and Junc 30. 2016. respectively.
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At Junc 30. 2016. future minimum lease payments for operating leases are as follows (in millions):

Year Amount

2017 40.0
2018 333
2019 25.5
2020 18.9
2021 13.0
Thereafter g 14.9
Total $ 145.6

AtJunce 30, 2016. the Company had unused commitments to extend credit for loans of approximately $9.0 million. Such
commitments arise from agreements with customers for unused lines of credit on certain foan products.,

As of June 30. 2016, our liability for uncertain tax positions amounted 10 $139.6 million. including interest and penalties.
Due to the nature and timing of the ultimate outcome ot these uncertain tax positions. we cannot make a reliable estimate ol the
amount and period of related future payments. Therefore. our Liability has been excluded from the above contractual obligations
table.

17. Contingent Liabilitics

The Company is subject o various asseried and unasserted claims during the course ol business. Duc to the uncertainty
surrounding the litigation process, except tor those matters tor which an accrual is described below., the Company is unable 1o
rcasonably estimate the range of loss. if any. in connection with the asscrted and unasserted legal actions against it. Although
the outcome of many of these matters is currently not determinable, the Company belicves that it has meritorious defenses and
that the ultimate cost to resolve these matters will not have a material impact on the Company’'s consolidated tinancial position.
results of operations or cash flows. In addition 10 the legal proceedings discussed below, the Company is involved in routine
litigation and administrative proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business.

The Company assesses the materiality of litigation by reviewing a range of qualitative and quantitative tactors. These
(actors include the size ot the potential claims. the merits of the Company's defenses and the likelihood of plaintifis® suceess on
the merits. the regulatory environment that could impact such claims and the potential impact of the litigation en our business.
The Company evaluates the fikelihood of an unfavorable outcome of the legal or regulatory proceedings o which itis a party in
accordance with ASC Topic 430, Contingencies. An accrual tor a loss contingeney is recorded if it is probable that a liability
has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. When the
liability with respect 10 a mauer is reasonably possible. the Company estimates the possible loss or range of loss or determines
why such an estimate cannot be made. This assessment is subjective based on the staws of the legal proceedings and is based on
consultation with in-housc and external legal counset. The actual outcomes of these proceedings may differ from the
Company’s assessments.

Purported Canadian Class Actions

In 2003 and 2006, class actions were brought against NMM and Dollar Financial Group. Inc. in the Court of Queen's
Bench of Alberta. Canada on behalt of a class ot consumers who obtained short term loans from NMM in Alberta. alleging.
among other things, that the charge 1o borrowers in connection with such loans was usurious under Canadian federal law (the
“Atbena Litigation™). The actions scek restitution and damagges. including punitive damages. [n April 2010, the plaintif?s in
both actions indicated that they would proceed with their claims. Demands for arbitration were served on the plaintifl'in cach of’
the actions. and NMM filed motions to enforce the arbitration clause and stay the actions. which were later denied by the court.
NMM appealed those decisions and, in July 2013, the Court of Appeal dismissed NMM's appeal. In Scptember 2013, NMM
lited an application for leave to appeal to the Supreme Court of Canada. but on January 30. 2014, the Supreme Count denied the
application. Motions for class certification of these actions were heard on September 18. 2014: one class was certified as a
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17. Contingent Liabilities (continued)

representative action and the other was certified as a class action. The parties are engaged in discovery and the court sct a trial
date for September 2017. We intend to defend these actions vigorously.

In 2004, an action was filed against NMM in Manitoba on behalf of a purported class of consumers who obtained short
term loans from NMM. In carly February 2012, a separate action was filed against NMM and Dollar Financial Group. Inc. in
Manitoba on behalf of a purported class of consumers which substantially overlaps with the purported class in the 2004 action.
In April 2013, NMM fifed a motion 1o enforce the arbitration/mediation erms in the sccond action. in July 201 3. the Court
denied the motion to compel arbitration, In October 2013, NMM filed an appeal with the appellate court. 1n June 2014, the
court dismisscd NMM's appcal from the dismissal of the stay application. NMM filed an application for Icave 10 appeal the
appellate court’s dismissal to the Supreme Court of Canada. which dismissed the appeal application in November 2014 In April
2016. the plaintills in these actions tited a motion for class certification. In response. NMM filed motions to enforce class
action waivers signed by the plaintfls. FHearings on all of these motions are expected o occur in October and November of
2016. The allegations in cach of these actions are substantialty similar to those in the Alberta Litigation. We intend 10 delend
these actions vigorously:.

As of June 30. 2016. an aggregate of approximately CAD $26 million is included in the Company’s accrued liabilities
relating to the purported Canadian class action proceedings pending in Alberta and Manitoba. Previous scttlements in our
Canadian ¢lass action proceedings consisted of a cash component and vouchers to the class members for tuture scrvices.
Although we believe that we have meritorious defenses 1o the claims in the purported class proceedings in Albena and
Manitoba described above and intend vigorously 1o defend against such remaining pending claims. the uliimate cost of
resolution of such claims may exceed the amount accrued at June 30. 2016 and additional accruals may be required in the
future.

Purported US Class Actions

In November 2013, the Predecessor was served with a purported sharcholder class action lawsuit filed against it and
certain of its senior executives in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania (the “Court™). The complaint,
which purports to be brought as a class action on behalt ot purchasers of the Predecessor’s common stock between January 28,
2011 and August 22, 2013, alleges violuions of federal sceuritics laws regarding disclosures made by the Predecessor with
respect 1o its compliance with UK regulatory requirements, UK lending praciices. and its carnings guidance during the relevant
period. On April Y. 2014, the Court named as lead plaintifl’ in this purported class action a group consisting of the West Palm
Beach Police Pension IFund. the Arkansas Teachers Retirement System. the Macomb County Employces Retirement System and
the Laborers™ District Council and Comractors” Pension Fund of Ohio.

In March 2014, the Predecessor was served with a separate purported class action lawsuit fited against it. certain ofits
senior executives and directors, and the two underwriters who served as joint book-running managers for our April 7. 2011
common stock offering (the =2011 Oflering”) in the Court. The named plaintifiis the Arkansas Teachers Retirement System.
and its complaint, which purperts o be brought as a class action on behal of purchascrs of our common stock inthe 2011
Ofiering, alleges viokaions of federal seeurities laws regarding disclosures made by the Predecessor with respect o its
prospectus and registration statement relating to the 2011 Offering (the “Offering Materiais™). and the Predecessor’s Quarterly
Reporton Form 10-Q lor the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2010 and its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended June 30. 2010, which were incorporated by reference into the Offering Materials. The complaint seeks unspecified
monctary and other relief. The Campany believes that the complaint is without merit and intends to defend against it
vigorously.

Furthermore. on April 21, 2014, the Court consolidated the above referenced West Palm Beach Police Pension Fund and
Arkansas Teachers Retirement System actions. On or about July 21, 2014, the plaintitls filed their amended consolidated
complaint. The consolidated complaint purports 1o be brought as a class action on behalf of purchasers of the Predecessor's
common stock and 1o expand the class period from January 28, 2011 10 February 3. 2014, The consolidated complaint sceks
unspecificd monetary damages and other relicl. Delendams filed a motion o dismiss the consolidated compiaini, which the
Court denied in Junc 2015, Plaintills filed their motion for class certification in early Qctober 2015 and Detendants filed its
opposition to class cervtification in mid-December 2013, In December 2015, West Palm Beach Police Pension Fund withdrew as
a lead plaintift in the consolidated action. The partics are now engaged in discovery. The consolidated complaint sccks
unspecilied monetary and other relict. The Company believes that the consolidated complaint is without merit and intends to
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defend against it vigorously. We belicve itis wo carly 1o determine the likelihood of a favorable or unfavorable outcome or
ultimaie liability, if any, that may result from this casc.

Litigation Relating to the June 2014 Mcerger

Six purported class action lawsuits challenging the Merger were filed in the Delaware Chancery Court (the “Court™)
between April 8 and May 2. 2014: Michacl Marcus v. DFC Global Corp.. ¢t al.. Civil Action No. 9520-VCP: Maxince Phillips v.
DIC Global Corp.. et al.. Civil Action No. 9538-VCP: Mark Silverstein v. DFC Global Corp.. ctal.. Civil Action No. 9364-
VCP: Noh-Joon Cheoo v. DFC Global Corp., et al., Civil Action No. 9572-VCP; Cordell Jefirey and Sheila A. Jeflrey v. DFC
Cilobal Corp.. et al.. Civil Action No. 9590-VCP: and KC Gamma Opportunity Fund. 1P v. DFC Global Corp.. et al.. Civil
Action No, Y601-VCP.

The iaitial complaints in the six lawsuits were substantively identical. naming the same defendants and seeking the same
relict based on the same asserted claims. The complaims allege that the consideration sought for the Merger was unfair. that the
merger was the result of an unfair process and that the terms of the merger were inadeguate. The detendams included the
Predecessor and its board of dircctors at the time. as defendants along with the various entities acting as purchaser in the
Merger.,

The tirst count in cach of'the complaints was brought against the Predecessor’s directors. alleging that they breached their
fiduciary dutics to stockholders by approving the merger. The second count in cach of the complaints was brought against the
Predecessor and the various entitics acting as purchascr alleging that those entitics aided and abeued the individual defendants’
alleged breaches of fiduciary duy. Zach of the complaints secks class-action certification with the respective named plaintitt as
class representative. The complaints sought preliminary and permanent injunctions barring the merger and. it the merger were
 be completed. rescission of the merger or damages. Lach of the complaints also sought an award of attorneys” fees and
CXPENSCS.

On May 13. 2014, the Court consolidated the six actions and appointed plaintifls Michacel Marcus and KC Gammia
Opportunity Fund. LP as lead plaintifls and their respective counsel as Iead counsel. Also. on May 13, 2014, the Court granted
the lead plaintifls” motion for expedited procecdings. On May 28. 2014, the lcad plaintifis withdrew their motion to
preliminarily enjoin the special meeting for stockholders to vote on the merger pending the disclosure of additional information.
The parties ultimately seuled the mauter in March 2015, and the Court approved the partics” scttlement of this matter for an
immaterial amount. Thereatier, the Court issued an order closing this casc and relinguishing jurisdiction.

Between June and October 2014, five purported beneficial owners of the Predecessor's common stock. QOasis Investment
[ Master Fund. Lid.. Muirfield Value Partners L.P.. Candlewood Special Situation Master Fund. Ltd.. CWD OC 322 Master
Fund. Ltd.. and Randoph Watkins Slitka. filed with the Court petitions for appraisal of 4.604.683 shares of' the Predecessor.
The appraisal petitions sought. among other things. a determination of the fair value of the appraisal petitioners” shares at the
time of the Merger; an order that the Predecessor pay that valuce to the appraisal petitioners. together with interest at the
statatory rate: and an award of costs. anorncys’ fees. and other expenses. 1n May 2015, we agreed to pay Petitioners a portion
of the merger consideration in the amount o' $7.50 per share. plus accrued interest. for a towal ol approximately $36.4 million.
The trial in this matter occurred in October 2013, Subscquently. the Court directed the parties to submit turther brictings and
scheduled post-trial argument which occurred in March 2016. The Court has discretion to award the share price for the Merger.
or award a greater or fesser amount per share to these sharcholders. DIFC believes these alleged appraisal claims are without
merit and intends to vigorously detend this matter. (see also “Note 20 - Subsequent Evems™ below).

Other Matters

Regulatory Review by IFCA

In February 2015, Instant Cash Loans Limited ("ICL") (our licensed UK HECSTC subsidiary) was required to appoint a
“skilled person™ under the FSMA o review 1CL's customer lending and collection practices. In February 2013, KPMG. the
appointed skilled person. concluded that those practices were deficient with respect 1o loans made 1o certain customers since
January 201 3. 1CL initiated a customcer redress plan for this group. which includes an assessment of amounts that may be duc o
such customers. [n impiementing the redress plan, ICL continues to work with KPMG during the payment of financial redress
10 customers. which was subsianuially complete by June 2016. ICL commenced sending redress notices to these customers in
November 2015 and has since been providing tinancial and other redress to these customers on an ongoing basis. 1CI. had fully
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17. Contingent Liabilities (continued)

reserved for its customer redress plan in previous ycar and as of June 30, 2016. the remaining balance of this reserve was $1.0
million.

UK VAT Dispute

Our UK afliliate, Dollar Financial UK Limited, lodged an appeal in 20135 and submitted supporting evidentiary documents
10 a ‘Tax Tribunal on February 3. 2016. from a HMRC VAT dispute for services supplied 10 our UK lending companies by a
marketing firm and by overscas Icad-gencrators. The VAT amount subject 1o the appeal is approximately £3.2 million. In
August 2016. we reccived a favorable ruling from the First-Tier Tribunal. HMRC have untit October 14, 2016. 1w appeal the
decision to the Upper Tribunal.

Canada Transfer Pricing and Gouods and Services Tax

In Canada. we are in disputes with the Canadian Revenue Agency (*CRA™) regarding our proposed transfer pricing
adjustments_and arc_contesting the.CRA through.the.administrative-and-judicial process-The-GRA-has-assessed taxes-for fiscal---
years ending Junc 30. 2006 through 2013 related o intercompany transfer pricing and for fiscal yvears ending June 30. 2009
through 2013 related 10 goods and service 1ax (“GST7). We believe our existing reserves for these Canadian audits and
assessments are adequate; however, we cannot be cenain of the outcome of these tax mauers. If any such mauers were scttied
in & manncr adverse 1 us, or we were compelled to pay amounts in excess of our existing reserves, our results ol operations or
financial condition could be adversely aficcted.

Legal Actions in Spain

Our Spanish afliliate, Super Elcctivo, tiled an appeal to the Spanish Tax Authorities® assessment of €1.1 million for
transfer tax assessments for tax years 2010 o 2013, Super Efcctivo’s outside tax advisors believe that there is a reasonable basis
1o challenge the assessments and succeed on the appeal. and therefore Super Efectivo has posted the required security under
Spanish law. This 1ax appcal process is expecied to take between two and nine years o complete.

In August 2015. the Catalan Consumer Agency (FAgency™) in Spain initiated a proceeding against OK Moncey Spain in
connection with our single payment loan product. The Agency has alleged that the amount of commission charged by OK
Moncey in respect of initial disbursement {30% of principal) violates applicable usury laws. The Agencey imposed a fine of
€47.000 on OK Moncy Spain. OK Money Spain is currently appealing this decision. We believe that it is oo carly in the
proceedings to evaluate the probability of a favorable or unfavorable outcome. or to estimate the potential loss. if any.

Employment Relared Litigation

On May 12, 2014. the case Rodas v. Monctary Management of California. Case No. 2:14-cv-01389-TLN-AC. was filed
against our California operating subsidiary. by tormer employee Rodas and a purported class of similarly situated current and
former employces alleging seven employment claims. including failure 1o pay all overtime wages. to provide rest periods or
compensation in licu thereof, to provide meal periods or compensation in licu thercol, w provide itemized cmployee wage
statements, 1o pay wages duc at separation of employment in a timely manner, 10 pay accrued but unused paid time oft"and

-acation. as well as unlawful and unfair business practices under California law. We retained the San Francisco. California
based taw firm of Bartko Zankel. On April 13, 2015, the parties entered into a Memorandum of Understanding outlining
scitlement terms. A motion for approval of the sctdlement terms. including a payment ol $995,000 w0 the purported class and
plaintills” class counscl (inclusive of all administration costs). was filed in carly Junc 2015 and approved by the Court’s
decision on February 23. 2016, In April 2016, the Court gave final approval to the scttlement terms.

18. Geographic Information

Information concerning geographic arcas is as follows (in millions):
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Predecessor Successor Successor fiscal - Successor fiscal

period ended  period ended year ended year ended
June 13, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2014 2004 205 2016

Revenue

United Kingdom S 4316 S s 1864 $ 151.0
North America 4223 20.2 421.3 420.9
Rest of the World 96.0 4.9 106.1 118
Total $ 9499 S 362 § 7138 § 683.7
Property and equipment, net

United Kingdom $ 723§ 410 S 28.1
North America 49.5 50.0 57.7
Rest of the World 15.7 6.5 5.0
Total $ 1375  § 97.6 § 90.8

19. Related Party Transactions

Asset Advisory Agreement

o connection with the Merger. on May 7. 2014, LSFS Sterling Merger Sub. 11.C and Hudson Americas 1.1.C
("Manager™). an afliliate of Lone Star, entered into an Asset Advisory Agreement (the "Asset Advisory Agreement”™). which
was joined by another aftiliate of Lone Star. Pursuant o the Asset Advisory Agreement, the Manager provides certain assct
management services with respect 1o us. our subsidiaries and our and their respective assets or acquired equity interests
(collectively. the “Asscts™). including: (i) communicating and coordinating with any personnel or other service providers hired
by us or our subsidiarics with respect the Assets; (it) assisting and advising us in the pursuit ol our long term plan developed
and adopied by us with respect to the Assets: (i) subject to the availability of sufticient funds. implementing the tong term plan
and managing the Asscts in accordance with the long term plan: and (iv) aking any actions as it decnis necessary or appropriate
10 protect our interests with respect o the Assets in response to certain emergency situations. Pursuant 1o the Asset Advisory
Agreement. we will pay the Manager an amount equal to 110% of the hourly billing rates of the individuals performing
management services. and all expenscs incurred by Manager on behalt of us will be paid by us. The Assct Advisory Agreement
is werminable by us, the Manager or Lone Star’s afliliate party 1 the agreement upon 30 days” notice from one pany 1o the
others. As of June 30, 2016. the Company had accrued approximatcly $3.0 million for expenses paid on our behall by the
Manager.

Lone Star Capital Contributions

In conjunction with the Merger on June 13. 2014, DIFC Globat Corp. sharcholders received from an afliliate of Lone Star
$9.30 in cash tor cach share of DFC Global Corp.’s common stock they owned. In addition to the 2014 Notes that were issued
to retire Predecessor debt. Lone Star contributed $700.0 million as a capital contribution. Lone Star contributed $81.8 mitlion in
capital during the fiscal vear ended June 30. 2015, partially 10 finance the acquisition of certain assets of Cash Store in Canada
(see “Note 3 - Business Combination and Acquisitions”™ above), to lund loan growth and tor general corporate purposes.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, Lone Star contributed an additional $170.0 million in capital 1o fund loan growth
and for general corporate purposcs. (See also “"Note 20 - Subsequent Evenis™ below)

DFC Finance Corp. Senior Secured Notes

An aftiliate of the Company's controlling sharcholders (Lone Star Fund VI (U.S.). L.P. and Lone Swar Fund VIIT
(Bermuda) L.P). that regularly invests in corporate bonds and other debt obligations as part of its ordinary course of business.
purchased (rom third partics in the open market 2014 Nowes issued by DIFC Finance Corp. in the amount of $10 million and
S185.7 million during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 and June 30. 2016. respectively. The affiliate acall times held
material amounts o' the 2014 Notes. (see also “Note 20 - Subsequent Events™ below)
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19. Related Party Transactions (continued)

Cross Currency Swap Agreements

On September 16. 2015, the Company entered into two swap agreements with a Lone Star affiliate. LSF8 HedgeCo. Lid..
to hedge the US dollar exposure associated with the interest obligation on a $570.0 million intercompany note between NMM
and DFC Finance. The swaps maturc on June 15, 2018, (see “Note 12 - Derivative Instruments and Hedging™ above)

Promissory Notes - Lone Star Affiliate

As of June 30, 2016, there were two outstanding loans totaling $26.0 million made by an affiliate of Lone Star to Mid-
loldings for general corporate purposes. These loans are payable on demand and bear interest at a rate of 3% per annum. (see
“Note 10 - Debt™ above and also “Note 20 - Subsequent Events™ below)

20. Subsequent Events

On July 6. 2016. the government of New Brunswick issucd proposed regulations governing the consumer lending indisery
Tiic proposcd regulaiions provide {or a maximum rate for payday lending of $135 for cach $100 barrowed and cap the
proportion of a borrower’s net pay. which is used o determine the maximum toan amount. at 30%. These rates and caps are
fower than we currently feature in New Brunswick. [t adopted as proposcd. this legislation will likely severcly impact results of
our single payment loan product in that Province. There can be no assurance that these regulations or laws, or any amendments
to these proposed regulations or laws. or our failure to comply with federal usury laws in New Brunswick. or any other
provincial or federal laws or regulations, will not have a detrimental eflect on our unsecured short term lending business in
Canada in the future. We have been. and could in the future be. the subject of litigation, proccedings. class action lawsuits or
caforcement relating 1o our payday lending activitics in New Brunswick. ’

On July 8. 2016. the Courtissued its ruling regarding the litigation of the appraisal price of shares of the Predecessor
related to the Merger. (See Note 17 - Contingent Liabilities). The Court ruled that the petitioners are entitled to the fair value
on the Merger Closing Date o1'$10.21 per share, $2.71 of which remains unpaid. and to interest aceruing on the unpaid amount
from Junc 13, 2014, at the rate of 3% over the Federal Reserve discount rate from time to time. compounded quarterly.
However. the Company’s counsel determined that there was an crror in the Court’s determination of this valuation and
requested reargument and reduction of the award 10 $8.62/share. The petitioners also requested leave and filed a motion for
rcargument afier the Court’s deadline had expired requesting a valuation in excess of the original $10.21/share awarded by the
Court. The Court granted both partics’ motions for reargument and adjusted s valuation o $10.30/sharc. This amount
represents an increase tor the petitioners of $0.80 per share over the merger consideration. As a result of the Court’s decision,
we may be required o pay up to an additional approximately $7.4 million. in addition (o $7.3 million prescntly maintained in
an cscrow account in connection with this litigation. Once the judgment becomes final both partics have the opportunity to
appeal.

On July 19.2016. we entered into a Joinder Agreement to the Receivables Sceuritization Facility (See Note 10 - Debt) with
certain new lenders. pursuant o which the new lenders agreed to provide additional loan commitments of $10.0 million. which
increased total available borrowing capacity under the Reccivables Sccuritization Facility to $110.0 million. We have drawn
this new commitment of $10.0 million o fund loan baok growth and for general corporate purposes. As a result, there remains
no excess borrowing capacity under the Receivables Securitization Facility under current commitment levels as of July 19,
2010.

On July 26. 2016. an atliliate of’ Lonc Star Funds subscribed for $21.0 million of ordinary shares in Sterling Mid-Holdings
Limited and lent $9.0 million to the Company to fund loan growth and for gencral corporate purposcs. The loan is payable on
demand and bears interest at a rate of 3% per annum, and. like other loans made by Lone Star 1o the Company. ranks cqually in
right of payment with the Company’s other senior indebtedness and effectively junior in priority to the Company’s securcd
indebtedness as to the collateral sccuring such secured indebiedness.

In August 2016. the Court granted plaintifTs” motion for class certification in the Arkansas Teachers Retirement System
casc.

On August 19, 2016 (the “Settlement Date”™). the Issuer seuled its private exchange offer 10 holders of the Company’s 2014
Notes and any interest accrued thereon from June 13, 2016 ("Accrued Interest™) for up to $800.0 million principat amount ol its
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newly issued 10.30%712.00% Scnior Secured PIK Toggle Notes due 2020 (the <2016 Notes™) plus additional 2016 Notes to be
issued in respect ol Accrued Interest (the “Exchange Ofter™). An aggregate principal amount ot $745.1 million (or 93.1% of the
outstanding principal amount) of the 2014 Notes (the “Tendered Notes™) were validly wendered and aceepted for exchange in the
LExchange Offer. On the Seutement Date. the Issuer accepted all Tendered Notes and delivered an aggregate principal amount of
$745.1 million of 2016 Notes. plus $13.9 million aggregate principal amount of additional 2016 Notes issued in respect of
Accrued Interess. to holders of 2014 Notes who participated in the Exchange OfTer. Following the Seitlement Date. a wotal of
$34.9 principal amount of 2014 Notes that was not tendered in the Exchange Offer remains outstanding, Pursuant (o the
Exchange Agreement. on the Sctilement Date. the Company, the 2016 Notes Trustee and the Lone Star aftiliate entered into the
Contribution Commitment Leuer. pursuant to which the Lone Star affiliate agrees 1o contribute to the Company an aggregate
amount of cquity capital of up 1o $73.0 miltion (subject 10 reduction for any capital contributions made (but not returned) aficr
July 29. 2016 and on or prior 1o the Sculement Date, the “Commitment Amount™) from time to time upon the request ol the
Company.

On August 19. 2016. the Company entered into a Consent. Limited Waiver and Seventh Amendment 10 Credit Agreement.
dated as of August 19. 2016 (the “"ABL Amendment”™), together with the Issuer, Sterling Holdings Limited ("Holdings™) and
certain borrowers, lenders and issuing banks party thereto. The ABL Amendment amends the Credit Agreement. dated June |13,
2014 (as amended. supplemented or madified, the “Credit Agreement™), by and among Holdings. the Company, Jefleries
Iinance LLC, as Administrative Agent and Collateral Agent, and the borrowers, lenders and other partices thereto. The ABL
Amendment was entered in connection with the Exchange Ofler (as defined above). Pursuant to the ABL Amendment, the
lenders under the Credit Agreement agreed o waive certain provisions under the definition of “Permiued Refinancing
Indebedness™ in the Credit Agreement with respeet to the certain supplemental arrangements under the Exchange Ofter, wo the
extent such provisions may be considered to be violated by any ol the supplemental arrangements.

On August 22, 2016 and Scptember 3. 2016 the Company reccived a capital contribution of’ $8.0 million and $25.0 million.
respectively, from an affiliate of Lone Star Funds which was used to support general corporate purposcs and to fund loan
growth,

On September 200 2016, certain of the existing lenders under the Securitization Facility made additional loan commitments
1o the Borrower in the aggregate principal amount of $20.0 million and, concurrently, made advances o the Barrower in such
aggregate principal amount of $20.0 millien. and the Borrower issued promissory notes in favor of such Lenders reflecting the
amount of their increased loan.

The Company has evaluated subsequent cvents from the balance sheet date through September 28, 2016. the date the
financial statements were available w be issued and determined there were no additional items requiring disclosure.

e
~)



Sterling Mid-Holdings Limited
(Successor to DFC Global Corp)

Annual Financial Report
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016



